From: Hanafy, Mohamed S

To: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com

Cc: jrichards@augustmack.com; CALILUNG, IRYN

Subject: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel Company
Date: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 8:56:00 AM

Attachments: image002.png

Dear Clint Hutchcraft,

| am the permit writer assigned to the current application No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel
Company. | would like to extend to you my contact information so that we may have continued
communication until your new permit is issued. Please keep this information at hand. It is common for
questions to arise, and oftentimes, further clarification is needed during the permit review process.

To expedite the review process, please e-mail me the electronic copy of your calculations (preferably in
excel format) and other supporting documents used as part of your application.

IDEM, OAQ will notify you when a draft permit has been submitted for public notice and/or when a final
permit has been issued. As part of the notification, IDEM, OAQ will provide information on how to access
the draft and/or final permit electronically on IDEM's website. If Lenex Steel Company would prefer to
receive paper copies of the entire draft and/or final permit, please let me know prior to the end of the
applicant review period. If you prefer to receive paper copies of the entire permit, IDEM, OAQ will mail a
paper copy of the draft permit and/or original signed final permit to the source contact. If you do not
request to receive paper copies of the entire permit, IDEM, OAQ will only mail a paper copy of the original
signed final permit signature page to the source contact.

Please feel free to contact me at any time if you have questions, concerns, or important information
regarding your permit. For your convenience, my section chief (Iryn Calilung) may be contacted at 317-

233-5692 or |ICALILUN@idem.IN.gov.

Thank you in advance for your time and assistance. | look forward to working with you.

Sincerely,

IDEM Mohamed S. Hanafy

317-234-4907¢ MHanafy@idem.IN.gov
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From: Susan Burkett

To: Hanafy, Mohamed S

Subject: FW: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel Company
Date: Thursday, March 21, 2024 2:58:43 PM

Attachments: image003.png

image004.png
image005.png
image006.png
image007.png
image009.png
Attachment B Calculations Indy.xlsx

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

From: Susan Burkett

Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 2:41 PM

To: mhanafy@idem.IN

Cc: Clint Hutchcraft <clint.hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com>; Duane.Geiger@lenexsteel.com; Gardner,

Will <WGardner@taftlaw.com>; Jennifer Richards <jrichards@augustmack.com>; Chuck Staehler

<CStaehler@augustmack.com>; ICALILUN@idem.IN.gov

Subject: FW: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel
Company

Dear Mr. Hanaty,

Attached are the requested calculations in Excel format. If you need any additional
information please let us know.

Sincerely,

Susan Burkett
A Technical Principal of Compliance

\l E,”Hl \'[“{qu August Mack Environmental, Inc.

ENViRoNNENTLl Email: sburkett@augustmack.com
Expertise. Innovation. Phone: 317.916.8000 | Mobile: 717.606.4242

Commitment. Nationwide. 941 Wheatland Avenue, Suite 401
@ @ Lancaster, PA 17603

augustmack.com

)

From: Hanafy, Mohamed S <MHanafy@idem.IN.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 8:56 AM

To: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com <Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com>
Cc: Jennifer Richards <JRichards@augustmack.com>; CALILUNG, IRYN

<|CALILUN@idem.IN.gov>
Subject: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel
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Summary

										Source-wide Emissions Summary



								Company Name:  		Lenex Steel Company

								Address City IN Zip:  		2902 Tobey Dr. Indianapolis, IN 46219



		Emission Units		 Unrestricted Potential to Emit (tons/year)

				PM		PM10		PM2.5		SO2		NOx		VOC		CO		Highest Single HAP				Total HAP

		Spray Painting Operation		10.26		10.26		10.26		------		------		23.37		------		Toluene		0.21		0.21

		Welding and Flame Cutting		0.95		0.95		0.95		------		------		------		------		Manganese		0.07		0.07

		Insignificant Activities

		Machining and Grinding		0.09		0.04		0.04		------		------		------		------		Manganese		0.00		0.00

		Natural Gas Combustion		0.04		0.17		0.17		0.01		2.25		0.12		1.89		Hexane		0.04		0.04

		Wet Cutting		------		------		------		------		------		0.32		------		------				0.00

		Total without Fugitives:		11.34		11.42		11.42		0.01		2.25		23.82		1.89		Toluene		0.21		0.32

		Fugitive Emissions

		Paved Roads		0.65		0.13		0.03		------		------		0.00		------		------				------

		Total with Fugitives:		12.00		11.56		11.46		0.01		2.25		23.82		1.89		Toluene		0.21		0.32







Coatings - Painting Ops

										Coatings



								Company Name:  		Lenex Steel Company

								Address City IN Zip:  		2902 Tobey Dr. Indianapolis, IN 46219

				Coatings Properties



				FAST DRY 4190 LIGHT GRAY PRIMER (unthinned)

				As per the SDS provided by the manufacturer (PPG), the Fast Dry 4190 Light Gray Primer has an unthinned VOC content of 2.815 lbs/gallon.

				As per the SDS provided by the manufacturer (PPG), the Fast Dry 4190 Light Gray Primer has an unthinned solids content of 77.207%.

				As per the SDS provided by the manufacturer (PPG), the Fast Dry 4190 Light Gray Primer weighs 12.35 lbs per gallons as applied.

				As applied:

				2.815		pounds of VOC per gallon

				As per the SDS provided by the manufacturer (PPG), the Fast Dry 4190 Light Gray Primer contains one HAP, toluene at less than 1%.

				PTE PM Emissions:				(80% transfer efficiency)

				12.35		lbs/gal

				77.21%		solids 

				9.54		lbs of solids / gallon

				2.86		lbs PM / hour

				12.53		tons PM / year



				Solvents Used for Paint Equipment Cleaning

										VOC Content

				MEK		0.09 gallons per hour				100%









Paint

								Painting Operations



						Company Name:  				Lenex Steel Company

								Address City IN Zip:  		2325 S 6th St. Terre Haute, IN 47802



		Unlimited/Uncontrolled Potential to Emit

		Material		Density (lbs/gal)		Weight % Volatile (H20 and Organics)		Weight % Water		Weight % Organics		Gal. of Mat. (gal/unit)		Maximum (units/hr)		Maximum (gal/day)		Pounds of VOC per gallon of coating less water 		Pounds of VOC per gallon of coating 		Potential VOC (pounds per hour)		Potential VOC (pounds per day)		Potential VOC (tons per year)		Particulate potential (tons per year)		Transfer Efficiency (%)		Potential HAPs (Toluene) (pounds per hour)		Potential HAPs (Toluene) (pounds per day))		Potential HAPs (Toluene) (tons per year))

		Fast Dry 4190		12.35		45.00%		22.79%		22.21%		1.00		1.725		41.40		2.80		2.74		4.73		113.54		20.72		10.26		80.00%		0.05		1.14		0.21

														Worst Case Usage (1 paint gun)  		41.40				Worst Case PTE (1 paint gun)  		4.73		113.54		20.72		10.26				0.05		1.14		0.21



		METHODOLOGY

		Pounds of VOC per gallon of coating less water = Density (lbs/gal) * Weight % Organics / (1-Volume% Water)

		Pounds of VOC per gallon of coating = Density (lb/ton) * Weight % Organics

		Potential VOC (lb/hr) = Pounds of VOC per gallon of coating * Gal. of Mat (gal/unit) * Maximum (units/hr)

		Potential VOC (lbs/day) = Potential VOC (lbs/hr) * 24 (hr/day)

		Potential VOC (tons/yr) = Potential VOC (lbs/hr) * 8760 (hr/yr) / 2000 (ton/lb)

		Particulate Potenential (tons/yr) = Maximum (units/hr) * Gal. of Mat. (gal/unit) * (1- Weight % Non-volatiles)* (1-Transfer Efficiency)* 8760 (hr/yr) /2000 (tons/lb)

		Maximum paint usage calculated based on 2022 total paint usage of 3,813 gallons in 2,210 operating hours (M-F 7:00 to 3:30)

		for an hourly paint usage of 1.725 gallons per hour



		Unlimited/Uncontrolled Potential to Emit for Solvent Usage

		Material		Density (lbs/gal)		Weight % Volatile		Gal. of Mat. (gal/unit)		Maximum (units/hr)		Maximum (gal/day)		Potential VOC (pounds per hour)		Potential VOC (pounds per day)		Potential VOC (tons per year)		Potential HAP (pounds per hour)		Potential HAP (pounds per day)		Potential HAP (tons per year)

		MEK		6.72		100.00%		1.00		0.09		2.16		0.60		14.51		2.65		0.00		0.00		0.00

																Worst Case Usage (1 paint gun)  		2.65						0.00



		METHODOLOGY

		Potential VOC (lb/hr) = Pounds of VOC per gallon of solvent * Gal. of Mat (gal/unit) * Maximum (units/hr)

		Potential VOC (lbs/day) = Potential VOC (lbs/hr) * 24 (hr/day)

		Potential VOC (tons/yr) = Potential VOC (lbs/hr) * 8760 (hr/yr) / 2000 (ton/lb)

		Maximum solvent usage calculated based on 2022 total solvent usage of 190 gallons in 2,210 operating hours (M-F 7:00 to 3:30)

		for an hourly solvent usage of 0.09 gallons per hour



														VOCs		HAPs

		Total PTE for Painting includes Paint and Solvent Used												23.37		0.21





WeldingFlameCutting

										Welding and Thermal Cutting



								Company Name:  		Lenex Steel Company

								Address City IN Zip:  		2902 Tobey Dr. Indianapolis, IN 46219





		PROCESS		Number  of		Max. electrode				  EMISSION FACTORS*								          EMISSIONS								HAPS

				Stations		consumption per				  (lb pollutant/lb electrode)								             (lbs/hr)								(lbs/hr)

		WELDING				station (lbs/hr)				PM = PM10 		Mn		Ni		Cr		PM = PM10 		Mn		Ni		Cr



		Submerged Arc								0.036		0.011						0.000		0.000		0.000		0		0.000

		Metal Inert Gas (MIG)(carbon steel)		17		1.85				0.0055		0.0005						0.173		0.016		0.000		0		0.016

		Stick (E7018 electrode)								0.0211		0.0009						0.000		0.000		0.000		0		0.000

		Tungsten Inert Gas (TIG)(carbon steel)								0.0055		0.0005						0.000		0.000		0.000		0		0.000

		Oxyacetylene(carbon steel)								0.0055		0.0005						0.000		0.000		0.000		0		0.000





				Number of		Max. Metal 		Max. Metal		EMISSION FACTORS								          EMISSIONS								HAPS

				Stations		Thickness		Cutting Rate		 (lb pollutant/1,000 inches cut, 1" thick)**								             (lbs/hr)								(lbs/hr)

		FLAME CUTTING				Cut (in.)		(in./minute)		PM = PM10		Mn		Ni		Cr		PM = PM10		Mn		Ni		Cr



		Oxyacetylene								0.1622		0.0005		0.0001		0.0003		0.000		0.000		0.000		0.000		0.000

		Plasma**		4		0.78		60		0.0039								0.044		0.000		0.000		0.000		0.000





		EMISSION TOTALS

		Potential Emissions lbs/hr																0.22		0.02		0.00		0.00		0.02

		Potential Emissions lbs/day																5.20		0.38		0.00		0.00		0.38

		Potential Emissions tons/year																0.95		0.07		0.00		0.00		0.07



		Methodology:

		*Emission Factors are default values for carbon steel unless a specific electrode type is noted in the Process column.

		**Emission Factor for plasma cutting from American Welding Society (AWS).  Trials reported for wet cutting of 8 mm thick mild steel with 3.5 m/min cutting speed (at 0.2 g/min emitted).  Therefore, the emission factor for plasma cutting is for 8 mm thick rather than 1 inch, and the maximum metal thickness is not used in calculting the emissions.

		   Using AWS average values: (0.25 g/min)/(3.6 m/min) x (0.0022 lb/g)/(39.37 in./m) x (1,000 in.) = 0.0039 lb/1,000 in. cut, 8 mm thick

		Plasma cutting emissions, lb/hr: (# of stations)(max. cutting rate, in./min.)(60 min./hr.)(emission factor, lb. pollutant/1,000 in. cut, 8 mm thick)

		Cutting emissions, lb/hr: (# of stations)(max. metal thickness, in.)(max. cutting rate, in./min.)(60 min./hr.)(emission factor, lb. pollutant/1,000 in. cut, 1" thick)

		Welding emissions, lb/hr: (# of stations)(max. lbs of electrode used/hr/station)(emission factor, lb. pollutant/lb. of electrode used)

		Emissions, lbs/day = emissions, lbs/hr x 24 hrs/day

		Emissions, tons/yr = emissions, lb/hr x 8,760 hrs/year x 1 ton/2,000 lbs.





MachiningGrinding

										Machining and Grinding Operations



										Company Name:  		Lenex Steel Company

										Address City IN Zip:  		2902 Tobey Dr. Indianapolis, IN 46219



				Unit ID		Quantity		Maximum		Emission Factors*				Particulates

								Capacity 		(lbs/ton)				PM				PM10/PM2.5**

								(lbs/hr)		PM		PM10		(lbs/hr)		(tons/yr)		(lbs/hr)		(tons/yr)

				Production Activities

				Grinder		1		1,000.00		0.01		0.0045		0.01		0.02		0.00		0.01

				Metal Saw Cutting		1		1,000.00		0.01		0.0045		0.01		0.02		0.00		0.01

				Drill Press		1		2,000.00		0.01		0.0045		0.01		0.04		0.00		0.02

				Totals												0.09				0.04



				Unit ID		Metal Fabrication HAPs

						Copper		Chromium		Lead		Manganese		Nickel		Cadmium		Chromium		Lead		Manganese		Nickel

						Content (%)		Content (%)		Content (%)		Content (%)		Content (%)		(tons/year)		(tons/year)		(tons/year)		(tons/year)		(tons/year)

				Production Activities

				Grinder		0.06%		1.00%		0.00%		2.00%		1.00%		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00

				Metal Saw Cutting		0.06%		1.00%		0.00%		2.00%		1.00%		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00

				Drill Press		0.06%		1.00%		0.00%		2.00%		1.00%		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00

				Totals												0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00

																						Total HAPs:   		0.00





				Notes

				Emission Factors are from EPA Air Emissions Inventories, Vol. II, Ch. 14, Castings Finishing, SCC #3-04-003-60

				*The emission factors for PM and PM10 are from AP 42-11.24-2 Metallic Minerals Processing -Dry Grinding (Table 11.24-2, 

				   SCC#30302410).  In the absence of valid AP 42 emission factors, PM 2.5 emissions are assumed equal to PM10 emissions.

				** Under the Part 70 Permit program (40 CFR 70), particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than or equal to a nominal 

				10 micrometers (PM10), not particulate matter (PM), is considered as a regulated air pollutant.  US EPA has directed states to regulate 

				   PM10 emissions as surrogate for PM2.5 emissions.

				Metal Fabrication HAPs Content (%) from SDS sheet for mild steel



				Methodology

				Emission Rate for PM and PM10 before controls (lbs/hr)  = Maximum capacity (lbs/hr) * (1 ton/2000 lbs) * Emission Factor (lbs/ton)

				Emission Rate for PM and PM10 before controls (tons/yr)  = Emission Rate (lbs/hr) * (8760 hours/1 year) *(1 ton/2000 lbs)

				Emission Rate for PM and PM10 after controls (lbs/hr) = Emission Rate (lbs/hr) before controls * (1-control efficiency)

				Emission Rate for PM and PM10 after controls (tons/yr) = Emission Rate after controls (lbs/hr) * (8760 hours/1 year) * (1 ton/2000 lbs)

				Uncontrolled PTE of Metal HAP (ton/yr) = Uncontrolled PTE of PM (tons/yr) x Metal HAP Content (%)





NatGasComb

												Natural Gas Combustion Only

												 MM BTU/HR <100



										Company Name:  		Lenex Steel Company

										Address City IN Zip:  		2902 Tobey Dr. Indianapolis, IN 46219



				Maximum Heat		Number of Units		Total

				Input Capacity				Input Capacity

				(MMBtu/hr)				(MMBtu/hr)

				0.35		15		5.25





										HHV

						Heat Input Capacity				mmBtu				Potential Throughput

						MMBtu/hr				mmscf				MMCF/yr

						5.3				1020				45.1



																Pollutant

				 		 				PM*		PM10*		direct PM2.5*		SO2		NOx		VOC		CO

				Emission Factor in lb/MMCF						1.9		7.6		7.6		0.6		100		5.5		84

														7.6				**see below

				Potential Emission in tons/yr						0.04		0.17		0.17		0.01		2.25		0.12		1.89

				*PM emission factor is filterable PM only.  PM10 emission factor is filterable and condensable PM10 combined.

				PM2.5 emission factor is filterable and condensable PM2.5 combined.

				**Emission Factors for NOx:  Uncontrolled = 100, Low NOx Burner = 50, Low NOx Burners/Flue gas recirculation = 32

				Potential Emission in lbs/hr = Potential Emission in tons/yr * 1 ton/2000 lbs * 8760 hrs/1 year



				Methodology

				All emission factors are based on normal firing.

				MMBtu = 1,000,000 Btu

				MMCF = 1,000,000 Cubic Feet of Gas

				Emission Factors are from AP 42, Chapter 1.4, Tables 1.4-1, 1.4-2, 1.4-3, SCC #1-02-006-02, 1-01-006-02, 1-03-006-02, and 1-03-006-03

				Potential Throughput (MMCF) = Heat Input Capacity (MMBtu/hr) x 8,760 hrs/yr x 1 MMCF/1,020 MMBtu

				Emission (tons/yr) = Throughput (MMCF/yr) x Emission Factor (lb/MMCF)/2,000 lb/ton



				Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

										HAPs - Organics

				 		 				Benzene		Dichlorobenzene		Formaldehyde		Hexane		Toluene		Total - Organics

				Emission Factor in lb/MMcf						2.1E-03		1.2E-03		7.5E-02		1.8E+00		3.4E-03

				Potential Emission in tons/yr						4.7E-05		2.7E-05		1.7E-03		0.04		7.7E-05		0.04

										HAPs - Metals

				 		 				Lead		Cadmium		Chromium		Manganese		Nickel		Total - Metals

				Emission Factor in lb/MMcf						5.0E-04		1.1E-03		1.4E-03		3.8E-04		2.1E-03

				Potential Emission in tons/yr						1.1E-05		2.5E-05		3.2E-05		8.6E-06		4.7E-05		1.2E-04

				Methodology is the same as above.														Total HAPs		0.04

				The five highest organic and metal HAPs emission factors are provided above. 														Worst HAP		0.04

				Additional HAPs emission factors are available in AP-42, Chapter 1.4.





WetCutting

				Wet Cutting and Grinding

				One (1) Band Saw



								Company Name:  		Lenex Steel Company

								Address City IN Zip:  		2902 Tobey Dr. Indianapolis, IN 46219



				Maximum amount of cutting fluid used =								12001.2		pounds

				Percent VOC of cutting fluid =								5.38%

				Percent HAP of cutting fluid =								0.00%

				Potential uncontrolled VOC Emissions (lb/yr) =								645.66		lbs/yr

				Potential uncontrolled VOC Emissions (ton/yr) =								0.32		tons/yr

				Potential HAP Emissions (ton/yr) =								0.00		tons/yr



				Methodology:

				Potential uncontrolled VOC Emissions (lb/yr) = Amount of cutting fluid (lb/yr) x %VOC 

				Potential uncontrolled PM/PM10/PM2.5 Emissions (ton/yr) = negligible since cutting fluid is used

				The band saw utilizes Lenox Band-Ade Fabricator as the cutting fluid

				VOC and HAP content provided by the manufacturer

				Cutting fluid does not contain HAPs

				Maximum amount of cutting fluid used determined based on average use of 3024 pounds during normal operating

				hour (7 to 3:30pm M to F or 2,210 hour per year) for an hourly usage of 1.37 lbs per hour.  Maximum amount used

				of 12001.2 pounds calculated based on 8,760 hours per year.









Paved Roads

										Fugitive Dust Emissions - Paved Roads



								Company Name:  		Lenex Steel Company

								Address City IN Zip:  		2902 Tobey Dr. Indianapolis, IN 46219



		Paved Roads at Industrial Site

		The following calculations determine the amount of emissions created by paved roads, based on 8,760 hours of use and AP-42, Ch 13.2.1 (1/2011).



		Vehicle Informtation (provided by source)

		Type		Maximum number of vehicles per day		Number of one-way trips per day per vehicle		Maximum trips per day (trip/day)		Maximum Weight Loaded (tons/trip)		Total Weight driven per day (ton/day)		Maximum one-way distance (feet/trip)		Maximum one-way distance (mi/trip)		Maximum one-way miles (miles/day)		Maximum one-way miles (miles/yr)

		Vehicle (entering plant) (one-way trip)		4.0		1.0		4.0		40.0		160.0		900		0.170		0.7		248.9

		Vehicle (leaving plant) (one-way trip)		4.0		1.0		4.0		13.0		52.0		1200		0.227		0.9		331.8

								0.0				0.0				0.000		0.0		0.0

								0.0				0.0				0.000		0.0		0.0

						Totals  		8.0				212.0						1.6		580.7



		Average Vehicle Weight Per Trip =  		26.5		tons/trip

		Average  Miles Per Trip =  		0.20		miles/trip

		Unmitigated Emission Factor,  Ef =  		[k * (sL)^0.91 * (W)^1.02]    (Equation 1 from AP-42 13.2.1)



				PM		PM10		PM2.5

		where k =  		0.011		0.0022		0.00054		lb/VMT  =  particle size multiplier (AP-42 Table 13.2.1-1)

		W =  		26.5		26.5		26.5		tons  =   average vehicle weight (provided by source)

		sL =  		9.7		9.7		9.7		g/m^2  =  silt loading value for paved roads at iron and steel production facilities - Table 13.2.1-3)



		Taking natural mitigation due to precipitation into consideration, Mitigated Emission Factor,  Eext = E * [1 - (p/4N)]       (Equation 2 from AP-42 13.2.1) 

		Mitigated Emission Factor,  Eext =  		Ef * [1 - (p/4N)] 

		where p =  		125		days of rain greater than or equal to 0.01 inches (see Fig. 13.2.1-2)

		N =  		365		days per year



				PM		PM10		PM2.5

		Unmitigated Emission Factor,  Ef =  		2.461		0.492		0.1208		lb/mile

		Mitigated Emission Factor,  Eext =  		2.250		0.450		0.1105		lb/mile						                                         



		Process		Mitigated               PTE of PM      (Before Control) (tons/yr)		Mitigated               PTE of PM10    (Before Control) (tons/yr)		Mitigated               PTE of PM2.5    (Before Control) (tons/yr)

		Vehicle (entering plant) (one-way trip)		0.28		0.06		0.01

		Vehicle (leaving plant) (one-way trip)		0.37		0.07		0.02

				0.00		0.00		0.00

				0.00		0.00		0.00

		Totals  		0.65		0.13		0.03



		Methodology														Abbreviations

		Total Weight driven per day (ton/day)		= [Maximum Weight Loaded (tons/trip)]  * [Maximum trips per day (trip/day)]												PM = Particulate Matter

		Maximum one-way distance (mi/trip)		= [Maximum one-way distance (feet/trip) / [5280 ft/mile]												PM10 = Particulate Matter (<10 um)

		Maximum one-way miles (miles/day)		= [Maximum trips per year (trip/day)] * [Maximum one-way distance (mi/trip)]												PM2.5 = Particle Matter (<2.5 um)

		Average Vehicle Weight Per Trip (ton/trip)		= SUM[Total Weight driven per day (ton/day)] / SUM[Maximum trips per day (trip/day)]												PTE = Potential to Emit

		Average  Miles Per Trip  (miles/trip)		= SUM[Maximum one-way miles (miles/day)] / SUM[Maximum trips per year (trip/day)]

		Unmitigated PTE (tons/yr)		= [Maximum one-way miles (miles/yr)] * [Unmitigated Emission Factor (lb/mile)] * (ton/2000 lbs)

		Mitigated PTE (Before Control) (tons/yr)		= [Maximum one-way miles (miles/yr)] * [Mitigated Emission Factor (lb/mile)] * (ton/2000 lbs)

		Mitigated PTE (After Control) (tons/yr)		= [Mitigated PTE (Before Control) (tons/yr)] * [1 - Dust Control Efficiency]
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

233-5692 or ICALILUN@idem.IN.gov.

Thank you in advance for your time and assistance. | look forward to working with you.

Sincerely,

IDEM Mohamed S. Hanafy

317-234-4907« MHanafy@idem.IN.gov



mailto:ICALILUN@idem.IN.gov
mailto:MHanafy@idem.IN.gov

Source-wide Emissions Summary

Company Name: Lenex Steel Company
Address City IN Zip: 2902 Tobey Dr. Indianapolis, IN 46219

Unrestricted Potential to Emit (tons/year)
Emission Units
PM PM10 PM2.5 S02 NOx voC co Highest Single HAP Total HAP
Spray Painting Operation 10.26 10.26 1026 [ - | - 2337 | - Toluene 0.21 0.21
Welding and Flame Cutting 0.95 0.95 095 | - | e | e | - Manganese 0.07 0.07
Insignificant Activities
Machining and Grinding 0.09 0.04 004 | | e | | - Manganese 0.00 0.00
Natural Gas Combustion 0.04 0.17 0.17 0.01 2.25 0.12 1.89 Hexane 0.04 0.04
Wet Cutting |} - | | e | | - 032 | - | e 0.00
Total without Fugitives: 11.34 11.42 11.42 0.01 2.25 23.82 1.89 Toluene | 0.21 0.32
Fugitive Emissions

Paved Roads 0.65 0.13 003 | e | - 000 | - | | e
Total with Fugitives: 12.00 11.56 11.46 0.01 2.25 23.82 1.89 Toluene | 0.21 0.32




Coatings

Company Name: Lenex Steel Company
Address City IN Zip: 2902 Tobey Dr. Indianapolis, IN 46219

Coatings Properties

FAST DRY 4190 LIGHT GRAY PRIMER (unthinned)

As per the SDS provided by the manufacturer (PPG), the Fast Dry 4190 Light Gray Primer has an unthinned VOC content of 2.815 Ibs/gallon.
As per the SDS provided by the manufacturer (PPG), the Fast Dry 4190 Light Gray Primer has an unthinned solids content of 77.207%.
As per the SDS provided by the manufacturer (PPG), the Fast Dry 4190 Light Gray Primer weighs 12.35 Ibs per gallons as applied.
As applied:
2.815 pounds of VOC per gallon

As per the SDS provided by the manufacturer (PPG), the Fast Dry 4190 Light Gray Primer contains one HAP, toluene at less than 1%.
PTE PM Emissions: (80% transfer efficiency)

12.35 Ibs/gal

77.21%  solids

9.54 Ibs of solids / gallon

2.86 Ibs PM / hour

12.53 tons PM / year

Solvents Used for Paint Equipment Cleaning
VOC Content
MEK 0.09 gallons per hour 100%



Painting Operations

Company Name: Lenex Steel Company
Address City IN Zip: 2325 S 6th St. Terre Haute, IN 47802

Unlimited/Uncontrolled Potential to Emit

Potential | Potential | Potential
Weight % Pounds of| Potential | Potential | Potential |Particulate HAPs HAPs HAPs
Volatile Gal. of Pounds of VOC per | VOC per VOC VOC VOC potential | Transfer | (Toluene)|(Toluene)|(Toluene)
Density | (H20 and | Weight % | Weight % Mat. Maximum [Maximum | gallon of coating less | gallon of | (pounds | (pounds | (tons per | (tons per |Efficiency| (pounds | (pounds | (tons per
Material (Ibs/gal) [Organics)| Water | Organics | (gal/unit) | (units/hr) [ (gal/day) water coating | per hour) | per day) year) year) (%) per hour) | per day)) [ year))
Fast Dry 4190 12.35 45.00% | 22.79% | 22.21% 1.00 1.725 41.40 2.80 2.74 4.73 113.54 20.72 10.26 80.00% 0.05 1.14 0.21
Worst Case Usage (1 paint gun) 41.40 Worst Case PTE (1 paint gun) 473 113.54 20.72 10.26 0.05 1.14 0.21

METHODOLOGY

Pounds of VOC per gallon of coating less water = Density (Ibs/gal) * Weight % Organics / (1-Volume% Water)

Pounds of VOC per gallon of coating = Density (Ib/ton) * Weight % Organics

Potential VOC (Ib/hr) = Pounds of VOC per gallon of coating * Gal. of Mat (gal/unit) * Maximum (units/hr)

Potential VOC (Ibs/day) = Potential VOC (lbs/hr) * 24 (hr/day)

Potential VOC (tons/yr) = Potential VOC (lbs/hr) * 8760 (hr/yr) / 2000 (ton/Ib)

Particulate Potenential (tons/yr) = Maximum (units/hr) * Gal. of Mat. (gal/unit) * (1- Weight % Non-volatiles)* (1-Transfer Efficiency)* 8760 (hr/yr) /2000 (tons/Ib)
Maximum paint usage calculated based on 2022 total paint usage of 3,813 gallons in 2,210 operating hours (M-F 7:00 to 3:30)

for an hourly paint usage of 1.725 gallons per hour

Unlimited/Uncontrolled Potential to Emit for Solvent Usage

Potential | Potential Potential | Potential
Gal. of vOoC vOoC HAP HAP Potential
Density |Weight % Mat. Maximum [ Maximum | (pounds | (pounds |Potential VOC (tons per| (pounds | (pounds |HAP (tons
Material (Ibs/gal) | Volatile | (gal/unit) | (units/hr) | (gal/day) | per hour) [ per day) year) per hour) | per day) [ per year)
MEK 6.72 100.00% 1.00 0.09 2.16 0.60 14.51 2.65 0.00 0.00 0.00
Worst Case Usage (1 paint gun) 2.65 0.00

METHODOLOGY

Potential VOC (Ib/hr) = Pounds of VOC per gallon of solvent * Gal. of Mat (gal/unit) * Maximum (units/hr)

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

VOCs HAPs
Total PTE for Painting includes Paint and Solvent Used 23.37 0.21




Welding and Thermal Cutting

Company Name:
Address City IN Zip: 2902 Tobey Dr. Indianapolis, IN 46219

Lenex Steel Company

PROCESS Number of | Max. electrode EMISSION FACTORS* EMISSIONS HAPS
Stations consumption per (Ib pollutant/lb electrode) Ibs/hr) (Ibs/hr)

WELDING station (Ibs/hr) PM = PM10 Mn Ni Cr PM = PM10 Mn Ni Cr

Metal Inert Gas (MIG)(carbon steel) 17 1.85 0.0055 0.0005 0.173 0.016 0.000 0 0.016

Number of Max. Metal Max. Metal EMISSION FACTORS EMISSIONS HAPS

Stations Thickness Cutting Rate (Ib pollutant/1,000 inches cut, 1" thick)** (Ibs/hr) (Ibs/hr)

FLAME CUTTING Cut (in.) (in./minute) PM = PM10 Mn Ni Cr PM = PM10 Mn Ni Cr

Plasma** 4 0.78 60 0.0039 0.044 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

EMISSION TOTALS

Potential Emissions Ibs/hr 0.22 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.02

Potential Emissions Ibs/day 5.20 0.38 0.00 0.00 0.38

Potential Emissions tons/year 0.95 0.07 0.00 0.00 0.07

Methodology:

*Emission Factors are default values for carbon steel unless a specific electrode type is noted in the Process column.
**Emission Factor for plasma cutting from American Welding Society (AWS). Trials reported for wet cutting of 8 mm thick mild steel with 3.5 m/min cutting speed (at 0.2 g/min emitted). Therefore, the emission factor for

Using AWS average values: (0.25 g/min)/(3.6 m/min) x (0.0022 Ib/g)/(39.37 in./m) x (1,000 in.) = 0.0039 1b/1,000 in. cut, 8 mm thick
Plasma cutting emissions, Ib/hr: (# of stations)(max. cutting rate, in./min.)(60 min./hr.)(emission factor, Ib. pollutant/1,000 in. cut, 8 mm thick)

Cutting emissions, Ib/hr: (# of stations)(max. metal thickness, in.)(max. cutting rate, in./min.)(60 min./hr.)(emission factor, Ib. pollutant/1,000 in. cut, 1" thick)
Welding emissions, Ib/hr: (# of stations)(max. Ibs of electrode used/hr/station)(emission factor, Ib. pollutant/Ib. of electrode used)
Emissions, Ibs/day = emissions, Ibs/hr x 24 hrs/day
Emissions, tons/yr = emissions, Ib/hr x 8,760 hrs/year x 1 ton/2,000 Ibs.




Company Name:

Machining and Grinding Operations

Lenex Steel Company

Address City IN Zip: 2902 Tobey Dr. Indianapolis, IN 46219

Notes

Emission Factors are from EPA Air Emissions Inventories, Vol. Il, Ch. 14, Castings Finishing, SCC #3-04-003-60

*The emission factors for PM and PM10 are from AP 42-11.24-2 Metallic Minerals Processing -Dry Grinding (Table 11.24-2,
SCC#30302410). In the absence of valid AP 42 emission factors, PM 2.5 emissions are assumed equal to PM10 emissions.

** Under the Part 70 Permit program (40 CFR 70), particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than or equal to a nominal

10 micrometers (PM10), not particulate matter (PM), is considered as a regulated air pollutant. US EPA has directed states to regulate
PM10 emissions as surrogate for PM2.5 emissions.

Metal Fabrication HAPs Content (%) from SDS sheet for mild steel

Methodology

Emission Rate for PM and PM;, before controls (Ibs/hr) = Maximum capacity (Ibs/hr) * (1 ton/2000 Ibs) * Emission Factor (Ibs/ton)
Emission Rate for PM and PM;, before controls (tons/yr) = Emission Rate (Ibs/hr) * (8760 hours/1 year) *(1 ton/2000 Ibs)

Emission Rate for PM and PMy, after controls (Ibs/hr) = Emission Rate (Ibs/hr) before controls * (1-control efficiency)

Emission Rate for PM and PM; after controls (tons/yr) = Emission Rate after controls (Ibs/hr) * (8760 hours/1 year) * (1 ton/2000 Ibs)

Uncontrolled PTE of Metal HAP (ton/yr) = Uncontrolled PTE of PM (tons/yr) x Metal HAP Content (%)

Maximum Emission Factors* Particulates
Unit ID Quantity Capacity (Ibs/ton) PM PM10/PM2.5**
(Ibs/hr) PM |  PM10 (Ibs/hr) | (tons/yr) (Ibs/hr) | (tonsiyr)
Production Activities
Grinder 1 1,000.00 0.01 0.0045 0.01 0.02 0.00 0.01
Metal Saw Cutting 1 1,000.00 0.01 0.0045 0.01 0.02 0.00 0.01
Drill Press 1 2,000.00 0.01 0.0045 0.01 0.04 0.00 0.02
Totals 0.09 0.04
Metal Fabrication HAPs
Unit ID Copper Chromium Lead Manganese Nickel Cadmium Chromium Lead Manganese Nickel
Content (%) | Content (%) [ Content (%) | Content (%) | Content (%) (tons/year) (tons/year) (tons/year) (tons/year) | (tons/year)
Production Activities
Grinder 0.06% 1.00% 0.00% 2.00% 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Metal Saw Cutting 0.06% 1.00% 0.00% 2.00% 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Drill Press 0.06% 1.00% 0.00% 2.00% 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total HAPs: 0.00




Natural Gas Combustion Only
MM BTU/HR <100

Company Name: Lenex Steel Company

Address City IN Zip: 2902 Tobey Dr. Indianapolis, IN 46219

Maximum Heat Total
Input Capacity Number of Units Input Capacity
(MMBtu/hr) (MMBtu/hr)
0.35 15 5.25

HHV
Heat Input Capacity mmBtu Potential Throughput
MMBtu/hr mmscf MMCF/yr
I
Pollutant

PM* PM10* direct PM2.5* S02 NOx VOC CO

Emission Factor in Ib/MMCF 1.9 7.6 7.6 0.6 100 5.5 84

7.6 **see below
Potential Emission in tons/yr 0.04 0.17 0.17 0.01 2.25 0.12 1.89

*PM emission factor is filterable PM only. PM10 emission factor is filterable and condensable PM10 combined.
PM2.5 emission factor is filterable and condensable PM2.5 combined.
**Emission Factors for NOx: Uncontrolled = 100, Low NOx Burner = 50, Low NOx Burners/Flue gas recirculation = 32

Potential Emission in Ibs/hr = Potential Emission in tons/yr * 1 ton/2000 Ibs * 8760 hrs/1 year

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
Emission (tons/yr) = Throughput (MMCF/yr) x Emission Factor (Ib/MMCF)/2,000 Ib/ton

Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAPs)

HAPs - Organics
Benzene | Dichlorobenzene | Formaldehyde Hexane Toluene Total - Organics

Emission Factor in Ib/MMcf 2.1E-03 1.2E-03 7.5E-02 1.8E+00 3.4E-03

Potential Emission in tons/yr 4.7E-05 2.7E-05 1.7E-03 0.04 7.7E-05 0.04

HAPs - Metals
Lead Cadmium Chromium Manganese Nickel Total - Metals

Emission Factor in Ib/MMcf 5.0E-04 1.1E-03 1.4E-03 3.8E-04 2.1E-03

Potential Emission in tons/yr 1.1E-05 2.5E-05 3.2E-05 8.6E-06 4.7E-05 1.2E-04
Methodology is the same as above. Total HAPs 0.04

The five highest organic and metal HAPs emission factors are provided above. Worst HAP 0.04

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

Maximum amount of cutting fluid used = 12001.2 pounds
Percent VOC of cutting fluid = 5.38%

Percent HAP of cutting fluid = 0.00%

Potential uncontrolled VOC Emissions (Ib/yr) = 645.66 Ibs/yr
Potential uncontrolled VOC Emissions (ton/yr) = 0.32 tonslyr
Potential HAP Emissions (ton/yr) = 0.00 tons/yr

Methodology:

Potential uncontrolled VOC Emissions (Ib/yr) = Amount of cutting fluid (Ib/yr) x %VOC

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
hour (7 to 3:30pm M to F or 2,210 hour per year) for an hourly usage of 1.37 Ibs per hour. Maximum amount used

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

Appendix A, Page 8 of 8

Maximum Number of one- Total Weight Maximum one- [Maximum one-| Maximum one- | Maximum one-
number of way trips per day | Maximum trips | Maximum Weight| driven per day way distance way distance way miles way miles
Type vehicles per day per vehicle per day (trip/day) | Loaded (tons/trip) (ton/day) (feet/trip) (mi/trip) (miles/day) (miles/yr)
Vehicle (entering plant) (one-way trip) 4.0 1.0 4.0 40.0 160.0 900 0.170 0.7 248.9
Vehicle (leaving plant) (one-way trip) 4.0 1.0 4.0 13.0 52.0 1200 0.227 0.9 331.8
0.0 0.0 0.000 0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0 0.000 0.0 0.0
Totals 8.0 212.0 1.6 580.7
Average Vehicle Weight Per Trip = tons/trip

Average Miles Per Trip = miles/trip

Unmitigated Emission Factor, Ef =

where k =

Taking natural mitigation due to precipitation into consideration, Mitigated Emission Factor, Eext=E * [1 - (p/4N)]

W =
sL =

[k * (sL)"0.91 * (W)M.02]

(Equation 1 from AP-42 13.2.1)

Ib/VMT = particle size multiplier (AP-42 Table 13.2.1-1)

tons =

PM PM10 PM2.5
0.011 0.0022 0.00054
26.5 26.5 26.5

9.7 9.7 9.7

average vehicle weight (provided by source)

g/m”2 = silt loading value for paved roads at iron and steel production facilities - Table 13.2.1-3)

Mitigated Emission Factor, Eext=Ef* [1 - (p/4N)]
where p = days of rain greater than or equal to 0.01 inches (see Fig. 13.2.1-2)
N = days per year
PM PM10 PM2.5
Unmitigated Emission Factor, Ef = 2.461 0.492 0.1208 Ib/mile
Mitigated Emission Factor, Eext = 2.250 0.450 0.1105 Ib/mile
Mitigated Mitigated Mitigated
PTE of PM PTE of PM10 PTE of PM2.5
(Before Control) | (Before Control) | (Before Control)
Process (tons/yr) (tons/yr) (tons/yr)
Vehicle (entering plant) (one-way trip) 0.28 0.06 0.01
Vehicle (leaving plant) (one-way trip) 0.37 0.07 0.02
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
Totals 0.65 0.13 0.03

Methodology

Total Weight driven per day (ton/day)
Maximum one-way distance (mi/trip)
Maximum one-way miles (miles/day)
Average Vehicle Weight Per Trip (ton/trip)
Average Miles Per Trip (miles/trip)
Unmitigated PTE (tons/yr)

Mitigated PTE (Before Control) (tons/yr)
Mitigated PTE (After Control) (tons/yr)

= [Maximum Weight Loaded (tons/trip)] * [Maximum trips per day (trip/day)]
= [Maximum one-way distance (feet/trip) / [5280 ft/mile]
= [Maximum trips per year (trip/day)] * [Maximum one-way distance (mi/trip)]

= SUM[Total Weight driven per day (ton/day)] / SUM[Maximum trips per day (trip/day)]
= SUM[Maximum one-way miles (miles/day)] / SUM[Maximum trips per year (trip/day)]
= [Maximum one-way miles (miles/yr)] * [Unmitigated Emission Factor (Ib/mile)] * (ton/2000 Ibs)
= [Maximum one-way miles (miles/yr)] * [Mitigated Emission Factor (Ib/mile)] * (ton/2000 Ibs)
= [Mitigated PTE (Before Control) (tons/yr)] * [1 - Dust Control Efficiency]

(Equation 2 from AP-42 13.2.1)

Abbreviations

PM = Particulate Matter

PM10 = Particulate Matter (<10 um)
PM2.5 = Particle Matter (<2.5 um)
PTE = Potential to Emit



From: Jennifer Richards

To: Hanafy, Mohamed S

Subject: FW: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel Company
Date: Wednesday, May 1, 2024 9:20:35 AM
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**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Mr. Hanafy,
Good morning. I wanted to check in and see if you had any updates on the air permit for
the facility. If you have any questions, please let me know.

Jennifer M. Richards
A Senior Compliance Consultant

August Mack Environmental, Inc.
AugustMack "9’
ENVIRONMENTAL Email: jrichards@augustmack.com
Expertise. |nnovation. MOb”e 3173637138

Commitment. Nationwide. 1302 North Meridian Street, Suite 300
Indianapolis, IN 46202
@ @ I augustmack.com

From: Susan Burkett <SBurkett@augustmack.com>

Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 2:41 PM

To: mhanafy@idem.IN

Cc: Clint Hutchcraft <clint.hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com>; Duane.Geiger@lenexsteel.com; Gardner,
Will <WGardner@taftlaw.com>; Jennifer Richards <JRichards@augustmack.com>; Chuck Staehler
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
Technical Principal of Compliance
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\nionsel Mack  August Mack Environmental, Inc.

e Email: sburkett@augustmack.com
Expertise. Innovation. Phone: 317.916.8000 | Mobile: 717.606.4242

Commitment. Nationwide. 41 \wheatland Avenue, Suite 401
. Lancaster, PA 17603
@ O

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
To: Jennifer Richards
Cc: CALILUNG, IRYN
Subject: RE: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel Company
Date: Wednesday, May 1, 2024 9:42:00 AM
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Good morning — | am still working on the Application No. 097-47633-00951, I’ll update you once the
permit is ready for applicant review.

Thank you,
Mohamed

From: Jennifer Richards <JRichards@augustmack.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 1, 2024 9:20 AM

To: Hanafy, Mohamed S <MHanafy@idem.IN.gov>

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
AugustMack ="
BNV IRONMENTAL Email: jrichards@augustmack.com

Commitment. Nationwide. 1302 North Meridian Street, Suite 300
Indianapolis, IN 46202
Q@O C augustmack.com

From: Susan Burkett <SBurkett@augustmack.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 2:41 PM

To: mhanafy@idem.IN
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Cc: Clint Hutchcraft <clint.hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com>; Duane.Geiger@l|enexsteel.com; Gardner,
Will <\WGardner@taftlaw.com>; Jennifer Richards <JRichards@augustmack.com>; Chuck Staehler

<CStaehler@augustmack.com>; ICALILUN@idem.IN.gov
Subject: FW: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel
Company

Dear Mr. Hanafy,

Attached are the requested calculations in Excel format. If you need any additional
information please let us know.

Sincerely,

Susan Burkett
A Technical Principal of Compliance
nisi ii}iémiﬂ August Mack Environmental, Inc.

== Y Email: sburkett@augustmack.com
Expertise. Innovation. Phone: 317.916.8000 | Mobile: 717.606.4242

Commitment. Nationwide. 944 \wheatiand Avenue, Suite 401
@ @ . Lancaster, PA 17603

augustmack.com

AU

VIEONMEN

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

To: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; Jennifer Richards

Cc: CALILUNG, IRYN

Subject: Applicant Review for Registration No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel Company
Date: Thursday, May 9, 2024 4:45:00 PM

Attachments: image002.png

47633tsd AR.docx

47633 calcs AR.xlsx

47633per AR.docx
Importance: High

Dears Clint Hutchcraft and Jennifer Richards:

Attached please find the draft Registration and supporting documents for review. As a courtesy, this draft
is being provided to you for an opportunity to review and provide comments prior to the issuance of the
permit approval.

The time clock for Registration permit No.: 097-47633-00951 will be stopped during your review until you
either provide comments or indicate that you do not have any comments. Due to permit accountability
and IDEM's intention to issue the permit in a timely manner, you are being allotted one (1) week to
provide comments in writing. If you have any conflicts or special circumstances that would impede your
review process during the time allotted, please notify me directly at the email address or phone number
listed below as soon as possible. If you have not responded on or before May 16, 2024, IDEM will
assume that you have no comments pertaining to this draft and all files will be forwarded for issuance.

During this review period, | will be available to address your concerns, answer any questions that you
may have, or make necessary revisions to this draft.

The following documents are not including in this review but will be included in the final approval:
Attachment A: 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart XXXXXX

Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-1.1-7, the fee for this permitting action is expected to be $1,100, which is based on
the following:

$600 Registration - New Source

$500 NESHAP Review - Subparts XXXXXX

Please note: This is not a bill. This represents the anticipated fee and is subject to change if additional
review is required or the permit level changes for some reason (e.g. an additional NESHAP review is
required). You will receive a final bill from the OAQ Permits Administration and Support Section.

Sincerely,
IDEM Mohamed S. Hanafy

317-234-4907¢ MHanafy@idem.IN.gov
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Indianapolis, Indiana	TSD for Registration No. R097-47633-00951

Permit Reviewer: Mohamed Hanafy	



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Office of Air Quality



Technical Support Document (TSD) for a Registration



Source Description and Location

Source Name:	Lenex Steel Company

Source Location: 	2902 Tobey Drive, Indianapolis, IN 46219

County:	Marion

SIC Code:	3441 (Fabricated Structural Metal)

Registration No.:	R 097-47633-00951

Permit Reviewer:	Mohamed Hanafy



On March 13, 2024, the Office of Air Quality (OAQ) received an application from Lenex Steel Company related to the construction and operation of a new stationary light structural steel fabrication operation.  



Existing Approvals

There have been no previous approvals issued to this source.



County Attainment Status

The source is located in Marion County.



[bookmark: _Hlk138321929]Pursuant to amendments to Indiana Code IC 13-17-3-14, effective July 1, 2023, a federal regulation that classifies or amends a designation of attainment, nonattainment, or unclassifiable for any area in Indiana under the federal Clean Air Act is effective and enforceable in Indiana on the effective date of the federal regulation.



		Pollutant

		Designation



		SO2

		Attainment effective May 21, 2020, for the 2010 SO2 primary 1-hour standard for Center, Perry, and Wayne townships. Unclassifiable or attainment effective April 9, 2018, for the remainder of the county. Better than national secondary standards effective March 3, 1978.



		CO

		Attainment effective February 18, 2000, for the part of the city of Indianapolis bounded by 11th Street on the north; Capitol Avenue on the west; Georgia Street on the south; and Delaware Street on the east. Unclassifiable or attainment effective November 15, 1990, for the remainder of Indianapolis and Marion County.



		O3

		Unclassifiable or attainment effective January 16, 2018, for the 2015 8-hour ozone standard.



		PM2.5

		Unclassifiable or attainment effective April 15, 2015, for the 2012 annual PM2.5 standard.



		PM2.5

		Unclassifiable or attainment effective December 13, 2009, for the 2006 24-hour PM2.5 standard.



		PM10

		Unclassifiable effective November 15, 1990.



		NO2

		Unclassifiable or attainment effective January 29, 2012, for the 2010 NO2 standard.



		Pb

		Unclassifiable or attainment effective December 31, 2011, for the 2008 lead standard.







(a)	Ozone Standards

Volatile organic compounds (VOC) and Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) are regulated under the Clean Air Act (CAA) for the purposes of attaining and maintaining the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for ozone.  Therefore, VOC and NOx emissions are considered when evaluating the rule applicability relating to ozone.  Marion County has been designated as attainment or unclassifiable for ozone.  Therefore, VOC and NOx emissions were reviewed pursuant to the requirements of Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), 326 IAC 2-2.



(b)	PM2.5

Marion County has been classified as attainment for PM2.5.  Therefore, direct PM2.5, SO2, and NOx emissions were reviewed pursuant to the requirements of Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), 326 IAC 2-2.



(c)	Other Criteria Pollutants

Marion County has been classified as attainment or unclassifiable in Indiana for all the other criteria pollutants.  Therefore, these emissions were reviewed pursuant to the requirements for Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD), 326 IAC 2-2.



Fugitive Emissions

The fugitive emissions of regulated air pollutants and hazardous air pollutants (HAP) are counted toward the determination of Registration (326 IAC 2-5.1-2) applicability and source status under Section 112 of the Clean Air Act (CAA).



Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

On June 23, 2014, in the case of Utility Air Regulatory Group v. EPA, cause no. 12-1146, (available at http://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/13pdf/12-1146_4g18.pdf) the United States Supreme Court ruled that the U.S. EPA does not have the authority to treat greenhouse gases (GHGs) as an air pollutant for the purpose of determining operating permit applicability or PSD Major source status.  On July 24, 2014, the U.S. EPA issued a memorandum to the Regional Administrators outlining next steps in permitting decisions in light of the Supreme Court’s decision.  U.S. EPA’s guidance states that U.S. EPA will no longer require PSD or Title V permits for sources “previously classified as ‘Major’ based solely on greenhouse gas emissions.”



The Indiana Environmental Rules Board adopted the GHG regulations required by U.S. EPA at 326 IAC 2-2-1(zz), pursuant to Ind. Code § 13-14-9-8(h) (Section 8 rulemaking).  A rule, or part of a rule, adopted under Section 8 is automatically invalidated when the corresponding federal rule, or part of the rule, is invalidated.  Due to the United States Supreme Court Ruling, IDEM, OAQ cannot consider GHG emissions to determine operating permit applicability or PSD applicability to a source or modification.



Background and Description of Emission Units and Pollution Control Equipment

The Office of Air Quality (OAQ) has reviewed an application, submitted by Lenex Steel Company on March 13, 2024, relating to construction and operation of a new stationary light structural steel fabrication operation.



The following is a list of the new emission units and pollution control devices:



(a)	One (1) surface coating booth, identified as PB1, approved in 2024 for construction, using a single high volume low pressure (HVLP) spray applicator to coat structural steel, with a maximum capacity of 1.72 gallons of paint per hour and 2.16 gallons of solvents per day, using no control, and exhausting indoors.



[bookmark: _Hlk166072217](b)	Seventeen (17) MIG welding stations, identified as Weld 1 to Weld 17, approved in 2024 for construction, each with a maximum electrode consumption of 1.85 pounds per hour, using no control and exhausting indoors.



Under 40 CFR 63, Subpart XXXXXX, each station is considered an affected facility.



[bookmark: _Hlk166072638][bookmark: _Hlk166072181](c)	Four (4) plasma cutting stations, identified as Plasma 1 to Plasma 4, approved in 2024 for construction, each station with a maximum metal cutting rate of 60 inches per minute and maximum metal thickness of 0.78 inches, using a dust collector and exhausting indoors.



(d)	One (1) Machining and Grinding operation, identified as Machining-1, approved in 2024 for construction, using no control, exhausting indoors, and consisting of the following:



[bookmark: _Hlk165903152](1)	One (1) grinder, with a maximum capacity of 1,000 pounds per hour.

(2)	One (1) metal cutting saw, with a maximum capacity of 1,000 pounds per hour.

(3)	One (1) drill press, with a maximum capacity of 2,000 pounds per hour.



Under NESHAP 40 CFR 63, Subpart XXXXXX, each station is considered an affected facility.



(e)	One (1) Band Saw, using wet cutting fluid, approved in 2024 for construction, using no control, exhausting indoors.



[bookmark: _Hlk165616706](f)	Fifteen (15) natural gas-fired heaters, approved in 2024 for construction, each with a maximum heat input capacity of 0.35 MMBtu per hour, using no control, exhausting outdoors, and consisting of the following:



[bookmark: _Hlk165903194](1)	Ten (10) natural gas-fired radiant comfort heaters, identified as H-1 through H-10.

(2)	Five (5) natural gas-fired standard comfort heaters, identified as H-11 through H-15.



[bookmark: _Hlk165616747](g)	Paved Roads.



Enforcement Issues

There are no pending enforcement actions related to this source.



Emission Calculations

See Appendix A of this Technical Support Document for detailed emission calculations.



Permit Level Determination – Registration

This table reflects the unrestricted potential emissions of the source.  If the control equipment has been determined to be integral, the table reflects the potential to emit (PTE) after consideration of the integral control device.



		

		Unrestricted Source-Wide Emissions (ton/year)



		

		PM1

		PM101

		PM2.51, 2

		SO2

		NOX

		VOC

		CO

		Single HAP3

		Total

HAPs



		Total PTE of Entire Source Including Source-Wide Fugitives

		12.00

		11.56

		11.46

		0.01

		2.25

		23.82

		1.89

		0.93

		1.05



		Exemptions Levels

		< 5

		< 5

		< 5

		< 10

		< 10

		< 10

		< 25

		< 10

		< 25



		Registration Levels

		< 25

		< 25

		< 25

		< 25

		< 25

		< 25

		< 100

		< 10

		< 25



		1Under the Part 70 Permit program (40 CFR 70), PM10 and PM2.5, not particulate matter (PM), are each considered as a "regulated air pollutant.”

2PM2.5 listed is direct PM2.5.

3Single highest source-wide HAP.







(a)	The potential to emit (as defined in 326 IAC 2-1.1-1) of PM, PM10, PM2.5, and VOC are each within the ranges listed in 326 IAC 2-5.1-2(a)(1).  The potential to emit of all other regulated air pollutants are less than the ranges listed in 326 IAC 2-5.1-2(a)(1).  Therefore, the source is subject to the provisions of 326 IAC 2-5.1-2 (Registrations).  The source will be issued a Registration.



(b)	The potential to emit (as defined in 326 IAC 2-1.1-1) of any single HAP is less than ten (10) tons per year and the potential to emit (as defined in 326 IAC 2-1.1-1) of a combination of HAPs is less than twenty-five (25) tons per year.  Therefore, this source is an area source under Section 112 of the Clean Air Act (CAA) and not subject to the provisions of 326 IAC 2-7.



Federal Rule Applicability Determination

Federal rule applicability for this source has been reviewed as follows:



New Source Performance Standards (NSPS):



(a)	The requirements for the New Source Performance Standards for Industrial-Commercial-Institutional Steam Generating Units, 40 CFR 60, Subpart Db and 326 IAC 12, are not included in the registration for the natural gas-fired heaters, because the natural gas-fired heaters are not steam generating units.



(b)	The requirements for the New Source Performance Standards for Small Industrial-Commercial-Institutional Steam Generating Units, 40 CFR 60, Subpart Dc and 326 IAC 12, are not included in the registration for the natural gas-fired heaters, because the natural gas-fired heaters are not steam generating units.



(c)	There are no New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) (326 IAC 12 and 40 CFR Part 60) included in the registration.



National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP):



(a)	The requirements of the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPs) for Surface Coating of Miscellaneous Metal Parts and Products, 40 CFR 63.3880, Subpart MMMM  and 326 IAC 20-80, are not included in the permit, since this source is not a major source of HAPs as defined in 40 CFR 63.3881(b). 



(b)	The requirements of the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPs) for Paint Stripping and Miscellaneous Surface Coating Operations at Area Sources, 40 CFR 63, Subpart HHHHHH, are not included in the registration for this source, since although this source is an area source of HAPs as defined in §63.2, this source does not perform paint stripping operations, perform spray application of coatings to motor vehicles and mobile equipment, or perform spray application of coatings to metal or plastic with coatings containing the metal HAPs, as defined in 40 CFR 63.11180.



(c)	This source is subject to the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPs) for Metal Fabrication and Finishing Source Categories for Nine Source Categories Area Source 40 CFR 63, Subpart XXXXXX (6X), because this source is an area source that is primarily engaged in operations of fabricated structural metal manufacturing (Standard Industries Classification (SIC) code: 3441), which is one of the nine source categories listed in 40 CFR 63.11514. 



The requirements of Subpart XXXXXX (6X) are included for:



[bookmark: _Hlk166072691](1)	Seventeen (17) MIG welding stations, identified as Weld 1 to Weld 17, approved in 2024 for construction, each with a maximum electrode consumption of 1.85 pounds per hour, using no control and exhausting indoors.



[bookmark: _Hlk166072842](2)	One (1) Machining and Grinding operation, identified as Machining-1, approved in 2024 for construction, using no control, exhausting indoors, and consisting of the following:



(1)	One (1) grinder, with a maximum capacity of 1,000 pounds per hour.

(2)	One (1) metal cutting saw, with a maximum capacity of 1,000 pounds per hour.

(3)	One (1) drill press, with a maximum capacity of 2,000 pounds per hour.



This emission unit is subject to the following portions of Subpart XXXXXX:



[bookmark: _Hlk165619388](1)	40 CFR 63.1516(b)

(2)	40 CFR 63.11516(c)

(3)	40 CFR 63.11516(f)

(4)	40 CFR 63.11517(b)

(5)	40 CFR 63.11519



The requirements of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart A – General Provisions, which are incorporated as 326 IAC 20-1, apply to the facility except as otherwise specified in 40 CFR 63, Subpart XXXXXX.



(d)	There are no other National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants under 40 CFR 63, 326 IAC 14 and 326 IAC 20 included in the registration.



Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM):



Pursuant to 40 CFR 64.2, Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) is not included in the registration, because the unlimited potential to emit of the source is less than the Title V major source thresholds and the source is not required to obtain a Part 70 or Part 71 permit.



State Rule Applicability - Entire Source

State rule applicability for this source has been reviewed as follows:



326 IAC 2-5.1-2 (Registrations)

Registration applicability is discussed under the Permit Level Determination – Registration section above.



326 IAC 2-4.1 (Major Sources of Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAP))

The operation of this source will emit less than ten (10) tons per year for a single HAP and less than twenty-five (25) tons per year for a combination of HAPs.  Therefore, 326 IAC 2-4.1 does not apply.



326 IAC 2-6 (Emission Reporting)

This source is not subject to 326 IAC 2-6 (Emission Reporting), because it is not required to have an operating permit pursuant to 326 IAC 2-7 (Part 70), it is not located in Lake or Porter County, and its potential to emit lead is less than 5 tons per year.  Therefore, this rule does not apply.



326 IAC 5-1 (Opacity Limitations)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 5-1-2 (Opacity Limitations), except as provided in 326 IAC 5-1-3 (Temporary Alternative Opacity Limitations), opacity shall meet the following, unless otherwise stated in the registration:



(1)	Opacity shall not exceed an average of thirty percent (30%) in any one (1) six (6) minute averaging period as determined in 326 IAC 5-1-4:



(2)	Opacity shall not exceed sixty percent (60%) for more than a cumulative total of fifteen (15) minutes (sixty (60) readings as measured according to 40 CFR 60, Appendix A, Method 9 or fifteen (15) one (1) minute nonoverlapping integrated averages for a continuous opacity monitor) in a six (6) hour period.



326 IAC 6-4 (Fugitive Dust Emissions Limitations)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-4 (Fugitive Dust Emissions Limitations), the source shall not allow fugitive dust to escape beyond the property line or boundaries of the property, right-of-way, or easement on which the source is located, in a manner that would violate 326 IAC 6-4.



326 IAC 6-5 (Fugitive Particulate Matter Emission Limitations)

This source is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-5, because the source has potential fugitive particulate emissions of less than twenty-five (25) tons per year.



326 IAC 6.5 (Particulate Matter Limitations Except Lake County)

This source (located in Marion County) is located in one of the counties listed in 326 IAC 6.5, but is not one of the sources specifically listed in 326 IAC 6.5-2 through 326 IAC 6.5-10. The source-wide PTE of PM is 10 tons per year or more.  Therefore, this source is subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5-1-2 because the source-wide actual emissions of PM can be 10 tons per year or more. 



326 IAC 6.8 (Particulate Matter Limitations for Lake County)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.8-1-1(a), this source (located in Marion County) is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.8 because it is not located in Lake County.



State Rule Applicability – Individual Facilities

State rule applicability for this source has been reviewed as follows:



Surface coating booth (PB1)



326 IAC 6.5 PM Limitations Except Lake County

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-1(a), this source is subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5-1-2, because this source is located in Marion County, is not specifically listed in 326 IAC 6.5-2 through 326 IAC 6.5-10, and the source has the potential to emit particulate matter emissions of 10 tons per year or more and is not limited to less than 10 tons per year. In addition, the source has the capacity to use more than five (5) gallons of coating per day and not taking a limit to less than five (5) gallons of coating per day. Therefore, this source is subject to 326 IAC6.5-1-2.



(a)	Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-2(h), the surface coating operations shall be controlled by

 	a dry particulate filter, waterwash, or an equivalent control device, and the Registrant shall operate the control device in accordance with manufacturer’s specifications.



(b)	Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-2(h), if overspray is visibly detected at the exhaust or accumulates on the ground, the source shall inspect the control device and do either of the following no later than four (4) hours after such observation:



(1)	Repair the control device so that no overspray is visibly detectable at the exhaust or accumulates on the ground.



(2)	Operate equipment so that no overspray is visibly detectable at the exhaust or accumulates on the ground.



If overspray is visibly detected, the source shall maintain a record of the action taken as a result of the inspection, any repairs of the control device, or change in operations, so that overspray is not visibly detected at the exhaust or accumulates on the ground. These records must be maintained for five (5) years.



326 IAC 8-1-6 (VOC Rules: General Reduction Requirements for New Facilities)

The primer booth (PB-1) is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 8-1-6 because it is regulated by other rules in 326 IAC 8. The primer booth is subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 8-2-9 (Miscellaneous Metal and Plastic Parts Coating Operations).



326 IAC 8-2-9 (Miscellaneous Metal and Plastic Parts Coating Operations)

(a)	Pursuant to 326 IAC 8-2-1(a) and 326 IAC 8-2-9(a), the surface coating booth PB1 is subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 8-2-9, since it was constructed in 2024, located in Marion County, and has the unlimited PTE of VOC equal to or greater than fifteen (15) pounds per day, and this source performs miscellaneous metal surface coating under the SIC code #3441.



Pursuant to 326 IAC 8-2-9 (Miscellaneous Metal and Plastic Parts Coating Operations), the volatile organic compound (VOC) content of coating delivered to the applicator at the surface coating booth PB1 shall be not exceed 3.5 pounds of VOC per gallon of coating less water.



(b)	This surface coating booth PB1 is also subject to the work practices specified under 326 IAC 8-2-9(f).



(c)	Based on the SDS submitted by the source and calculations made, the surface coating booth is able to comply with this requirement by using only as-applied compliant coatings.



Welding Operation (Weld 1 through Weld 17)



326 IAC 6.5 PM Limitations Except Lake County

This source is subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5-1-2. The seventeen (17) welding stations, were not in existence on or before June 11, 1973, and are not specifically listed in 326 IAC 6.5-2 through 326 IAC 3.5-10. Therefore, pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-2(a), particulate matter emissions from each of the seventeen (17) welding stations, shall not exceed seven-hundredths (0.07) gram per dry standard cubic meter (g/dscm) (three-hundredths (0.03) grain per dry standard cubic foot (dscf)).



Plasma Cutting Operation (Plasma 1 through Plasma 4)



326 IAC 6.5 PM Limitations Except Lake County

This source is subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5-1-2. The four (4) plasma cutters, were not in existence on or before June 11, 1973, and are not specifically listed in 326 IAC 6.5-2 through 326 IAC 3.5-10. Therefore, pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-2(a), particulate matter emissions from each of the four (4) plasma cutting stations, shall not exceed seven-hundredths (0.07) gram per dry standard cubic meter (g/dscm) (three-hundredths (0.03) grain per dry standard cubic foot (dscf)).



Machining and Grinding (Machining-1)



326 IAC 6.5 PM Limitations Except Lake County

This source is subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5-1-2. The machining and grinding operation (Machining-1), was not in existence on or before June 11, 1973, and is not specifically listed in 326 IAC 6.5-2 through 326 IAC 3.5-10. Therefore, pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-2(a), particulate matter emissions from the machining and grinding operation (Machining-1), shall not exceed seven-hundredths (0.07) gram per dry standard cubic meter (g/dscm) (three-hundredths (0.03) grain per dry standard cubic foot (dscf)).



Wet Metal Cutting 



326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes) 

The wet metal cutting operation utilizes wet cutting methods and does not result in the formation of airborne particulate matter. Therefore, the requirement of 326 IAC 6-3-2 does not apply.



326 IAC 6.5 PM Limitations Except Lake County

The parts cleaner is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5, because the process does not emit particulate matter.



326 IAC 8-1-6 (VOC Rules: General Reduction Requirements for New Facilities)

Even though, this unit was constructed after January 1, 1980, it is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 8-1-6 because its unlimited VOC potential emissions are less than twenty-five (25) tons per year.



Natural Gas Combustion units (H-1 through H-15)



326 IAC 6-2-1 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Sources of Indirect Heating) 

The natural gas-fired heaters are not subject to 326IAC 6-2 because they are not sources of indirect heating as defined in 326 IAC 1-2-19. 



326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 1-2-59, the natural gas-fired heaters are not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3-2, since liquid and gaseous fuels and combustion air are not considered as part of the process weight.



326 IAC 6.5 PM Limitations Except Lake County

This source is subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5-1-2. The natural gas-fired heaters, were not in existence on or before June 11, 1973, and are not specifically listed in 326 IAC 6.5-2 through 326 IAC 3.5-10. Therefore, pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-2(a), particulate matter emissions from each of the fifteen (15) natural gas-fired heaters, shall not exceed seven-hundredths (0.07) gram per dry standard cubic meter (g/dscm) (three-hundredths (0.03) grain per dry standard cubic foot (dscf)).



326 IAC 7-1.1 Sulfur Dioxide Emission Limitations

The natural gas-fired heaters are not subject to 326 IAC 326 IAC 7-1.1 because each of these units have a potential to emit sulfur dioxide (SO2) of less than 25 tons per year or 10 pounds per hour.



326 IAC 9-1 (Carbon Monoxide Emission Limits) 

The requirements of 326 IAC 9-1 do not apply to the natural gas-fired heaters, because this source does not operate a catalyst regeneration petroleum cracking system or a petroleum fluid coker, grey iron cupola, blast furnace, basic oxygen steel furnace, or other ferrous metal smelting equipment. 



326 IAC 10-3 (Nitrogen Oxide Reduction Program for Specific Source Categories) 

The requirements of 326 IAC 10-3 do not apply to the natural gas-fired heaters, since these units are not a blast furnace gas-fired boiler, a Portland cement kiln, or a facility specifically listed under 326 IAC 10-3-1(a)(2).



Conclusion and Recommendation

Unless otherwise stated, information used in this review was derived from the application and additional information submitted by the applicant.  An application for the purposes of this review was received on March 13, 2024. 



The construction and operation of this source shall be subject to the conditions of the attached proposed Registration No. 097-47633-00951. The staff recommends to the Commissioner that the Registration be approved.



IDEM Contact

(a)	If you have any questions regarding this permit, please contact Mohamed Hanafy, Indiana Department Environmental Management, Office of Air Quality, Permits Branch, 100 North Senate Avenue, MC 61-53 IGCN 1003, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2251, or by telephone at (317) 234-4907 or (800) 451-6027, and ask for Mohamed Hanafy or (317) 234-4907.



(b)	A copy of the findings is available on the Internet at: http://www.in.gov/ai/appfiles/idem-caats/



[bookmark: _Hlk69120677](c) 	For additional information about air permits and how the public and interested parties can participate, refer to the IDEM Air Permits page on the Internet at: https://www.in.gov/idem/airpermit/public-participation/; and the Citizens' Guide to IDEM on the Internet at:  https://www.in.gov/idem/resources/citizens-guide-to-idem/.


Summary

										Appendix A:  Emissions Calculations

										Source-wide Emissions Summary



								Company Name:  		Lenex Steel Company

								Address City IN Zip:  		2902 Tobey Dr., Indianapolis, IN 46219

								Permit Number:  		R097-47633-00951

								Reviewer:  		Mohamed Hanafy



		Emission Units		 Unrestricted Potential to Emit (tons/year)

				PM		PM10		PM2.5		SO2		NOx		VOC		CO		Highest Single HAP				Total HAP

		Spray Coating Operation		10.26		10.26		10.26		-		-		23.37		-		Toluene		0.93		0.93

		Welding and Flame Cutting		0.95		0.95		0.95		-		-		-		-		Manganese		0.07		0.07

		Machining and Grinding		0.09		0.04		0.04		-		-		-		-		Manganese		0.00		3.56E-03

		Natural Gas Combustion		0.04		0.17		0.17		0.01		2.25		0.12		1.89		Hexane		0.04		0.04

		Wet Cutting		-		-		-		-		-		0.32		-		-				0.00

		Total without Fugitives:		11.34		11.42		11.42		0.01		2.25		23.82		1.89		Toluene		0.93		1.05

		Paved Roads		0.65		0.13		0.03		-		-		0.00		-		-				-

		Total with Fugitives:		12.00		11.56		11.46		0.01		2.25		23.82		1.89		Toluene		0.93		1.05
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Surface Coating_VOC_PM

																Appendix A:  Emissions Calculations

																 VOC and Particulate

																From Surface Coating Operations



														Company Name:  		Lenex Steel Company

														Source Address:  		2902 Tobey Dr., Indianapolis, IN 46219

														Permit Number:  		R097-47633-00951

														Reviewer:  		Mohamed Hanafy



		Material		Density (lbs/gal)		Weight % Volatile (water, VOC, and exempt compounds*)		Weight % water and   exempt compounds*		Weight %     VOC		Volume % water and              exempt compounds*		Volume %    Solids		Maximum Material Usage (gal/unit)		Maximum Capacity (units/hour)		Maximum Material   Usage (gal/day)		Pounds VOC per gallon of coating less water and exempt compounds		Pounds VOC per gallon of coating		PTE of VOC (lbs/hour)		PTE of VOC (lbs/day)		PTE of   VOC (tons/year) 		Uncontrolled             PTE of    PM/PM10/PM2.5 (tons/year)		Pounds VOC per gallon of coating solids		Transfer Efficiency

		Fast Dry 4190*		12.35		45.00%		22.79%		22.21%		2.60%		77.21%		1.000		1.725		41.400		2.82		2.74		4.73		113.56		20.72		10.26		3.55		80%

		MEK Solvent**		6.72		100.00%		0.00%		100.00%		0.00%		0.00%		1.000		0.090		2.160		6.72		6.72		0.60		14.52		2.65		0.00		0.00		0%

																		Totals		43.56						5.34		128.07		23.37		10.26

		**MEK Solvent is a solvent being used for paint equipment cleaning and is not a surface coating paint.



		Methodology

		*Exempt compounds include all compounds specifically exempted from the definition of volatile organic compounds (VOC) under 40 CFR 51.100(s).

		Weight % VOC = [Weight % Volatile (water, VOC, and exempt Compounds*)] - [Weight % water and exempt Compounds]

		Maximum Material Usage (gal/day) = [Maximum Material Usage (gal/unit)] * [Maximum Capacity (units/hour)] * [24 hours/day]

		Pounds of VOC per gallon coating less water and exempt Compounds = [Density (lbs/gal)] * [Weight % VOC] / [1 - (Volume % water and exempt Compounds)]

		Pounds of VOC per gallon coating = [Density (lbs/gal)] * [Weight % VOC]

		PTE of VOC (lbs/hour) = [Maximum Material Usage (gal/unit)] * [Maximum Capacity (units/hour)] * [Pounds of VOC per gallon coating]

		PTE of VOC (lbs/day) = [PTE of VOC (lbs/hour)] * [24 hours/day]

		PTE of VOC (tons/year) = [PTE of VOC (lbs/hour)] * [8760 hours/year]* [1 ton/2000 lbs]

		Uncontrolled PTE of PM/PM10/PM2.5 (tons/year) = [Density (lbs/gal)] * [Maximum Material Usage (gal/unit)] * [Maximum Capacity (units/hour)] * [1 - Weight % Volatile)] * [1 - Transfer Efficiency)] * [8760 hour/year] * [1 ton/2000 lbs]

		Pounds VOC per gallon of coating solids = [Density (lbs/gal)] * [Weight % VOCs] / [Volume % Solids]

		Controlled PTE of PM/PM10/PM2.5 (tons/year) = [Uncontrolled PTE of PM/PM10/PM2.5 (tons/year)] * [1 - Control Efficiency]







&8Page &P of &N, TSD App. A 




Surface Coating_HAPs

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



		Material		Density (lbs/gal)		Maximum Material Usage (gal/unit)		Maximum Capacity (units/hour)																PTE of 		PTE of 		PTE of 		PTE of 		PTE of 		PTE of 		PTE of 		PTE of 

										Weight %		Weight %		Weight %		Weight %		Weight %		Weight %		Weight %		Xylene		Toluene		Formaldehyde		Benzene		Hexane		Glycol Ethers		Methanol		Total HAPs

										Xylene		Toluene		Formaldehyde		Benzene		Hexane		Glycol Ethers		Methanol		(tons/year)		(tons/year)		(tons/year)		(tons/year)		(tons/year)		(tons/year)		(tons/year)		(tons/year)

		Fast Dry 4190		12.35		1.000		1.725		0.00%		1.00%		0.00%		0.00%		0.00%		0.00%		0.00%		0.00		0.93		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.93

		MEK Solvent		6.72		1.000		0.090		0.00%		0.00%		0.00%		0.00%		0.00%		0.00%		0.00%		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00

																						Totals		0.00		0.93		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.00		0.93



		Methodology

		PTE of HAP (tons/year) =  [Density (lbs/gal)] * [Maximum Material Usage (gal/unit)] * [Maximum Capacity (units/hour)] * [Weight % HAP] * [8760 hours/year]* [1 ton/2000 lbs]

		PTE of Total HAPs (tons/year) = SUM (PTE of Each Single HAP (tons/year))

		Hazardous air pollutant (HAP) is defined by Section 112(b) of the Clean Air Act.
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

				Grinder		0.06%		1.00%		0.00%		2.00%		1.00%		1.31E-05		2.19E-04		0.00E+00		4.38E-04		2.19E-04

				Metal Saw Cutting		0.06%		1.00%		0.00%		2.00%		1.00%		1.31E-05		2.19E-04		0.00E+00		4.38E-04		2.19E-04

				Drill Press		0.06%		1.00%		0.00%		2.00%		1.00%		2.63E-05		4.38E-04		0.00E+00		8.76E-04		4.38E-04

				Totals												5.26E-05		8.76E-04		0.00E+00		1.75E-03		8.76E-04

																						Total HAPs:   		3.56E-03





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



				Maximum amount of cutting fluid used =								12001.2		pounds/year

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

						5.25				1020				45.1



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
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Indianapolis, Indiana  		Registration No. R097-47633-00951

Permit Reviewer:  Mohamed Hanafy





REGISTRATION

OFFICE OF AIR QUALITY


Lenex Steel Company

2902 Tobey Drive,

Indianapolis, Indiana 46219





Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.1 (Construction of New Sources: Registrations) and 326 IAC 2-5.5 (Registrations), (herein known as the Registrant) is hereby authorized to construct and operate subject to the conditions contained herein, the source described in Section A (Source Summary) of this registration.  



		Registration No. R097-47633-00951

Master Agency Interest ID.: 18616



		Issued by: 







Iryn Calilung,  Section Chief

Permits Branch

Office of Air Quality

		

Issuance Date:









[bookmark: _Hlk68599402]
SECTION A	SOURCE SUMMARY



This registration is based on information requested by the Indiana Department of Environmental Management (IDEM), Office of Air Quality (OAQ).  The information describing the source contained in conditions A.1 and A.2 is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.  However, the Registrant should be aware that a physical change or a change in the method of operation that may render this descriptive information obsolete or inaccurate may trigger requirements for the Registrant to obtain additional permits pursuant to 326 IAC 2.



A.1	General Information

The Registrant owns and operates a stationary light structural steel fabrication operation. 



Source Address:	2902 Tobey Drive, Indianapolis, IN 46219 

General Source Phone Number:	317-818-1622

SIC Code:	3441 (Fabricated Structural Metal)

County Location:	Marion County

Source Location Status:	Attainment for all criteria pollutants

Source Status:	Registration 



[bookmark: _Hlk67992725]A.2	Emission Units and Pollution Control Equipment Summary 

This stationary source consists of the following emission units and pollution control devices: 



[bookmark: _Hlk166072673](a)	One (1) surface coating booth, identified as PB1, approved in 2024 for construction, using a single high volume low pressure (HVLP) spray applicator to coat structural steel, with a maximum capacity of 1.72 gallons of paint per hour and 2.16 gallons of solvents per day, using no control, and exhausting indoors.



[bookmark: _Hlk166072691][bookmark: _Hlk166072217](b)	Seventeen (17) MIG welding stations, identified as Weld 1 to Weld 17, approved in 2024 for construction, each with a maximum electrode consumption of 1.85 pounds per hour, using no control, and exhausting indoors.



Under NESHAP 40 CFR 63, Subpart XXXXXX, each station is considered an affected facility.



[bookmark: _Hlk166072710][bookmark: _Hlk165892561][bookmark: _Hlk166072638][bookmark: _Hlk166072181](c)	Four (4) plasma cutting stations, identified as Plasma 1 to Plasma 4, approved in 2024 for construction, each station with a maximum metal cutting rate of 60 inches per minute and maximum metal thickness of 0.78 inches, using a dust collector, and exhausting indoors.



[bookmark: _Hlk166072842][bookmark: _Hlk166072983](d)	One (1) Machining and Grinding operation, identified as Machining-1, approved in 2024 for construction, using no control, exhausting indoors, and consisting of the following:



(1)	One (1) grinder, with a maximum capacity of 1,000 pounds per hour.

(2)	One (1) metal cutting saw, with a maximum capacity of 1,000 pounds per hour.

(3)	One (1) drill press, with a maximum capacity of 2,000 pounds per hour.



Under NESHAP 40 CFR 63, Subpart XXXXXX, this is considered an affected facility.



[bookmark: _Hlk166073424](e)	One (1) Band Saw, using wet cutting fluid at a maximum usage rate of 1.37 pounds per hour, approved in 2024 for construction, using no control, and exhausting indoors.



(f)	Fifteen (15) natural gas-fired heaters, approved in 2024 for construction, each with a maximum heat input capacity of 0.35 MMBtu per hour, using no control, exhausting indoors, and consisting of the following:



[bookmark: _Hlk166072268](1)	Ten (10) natural gas-fired radiant comfort heaters, identified as H-1 through H-10.

(2)	Five (5) natural gas-fired standard comfort heaters, identified as H-11 through H-15.



(g)	Paved Roads 
SECTION B	GENERAL CONDITIONS



B.1	Definitions [326 IAC 21.11]

Terms in this registration shall have the definition assigned to such terms in the referenced regulation.  In the absence of definitions in the referenced regulation, the applicable definitions found in the statutes or regulations (IC 1311, 326 IAC 12 and 326 IAC 21.11) shall prevail. 



B.2	Effective Date of Registration [IC 13-15-5-3]

Pursuant to IC 13-15-5-3, this registration R097-47633-00951 is effective immediately, unless a petition for stay of effectiveness is filed and granted according to IC 13-15-6-3, and may be revoked or modified in accordance with the provisions of IC 13-15-7-1.

	

B.3	Registration Revocation [326 IAC 21.19]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 21.19 (Revocation), this registration to operate may be revoked for any of the following causes:



(a)	Violation of any conditions of this registration.



(b)	Failure to disclose all the relevant facts, or misrepresentation in obtaining this registration.



(c)	Changes in regulatory requirements that mandate either a temporary or permanent reduction of discharge of contaminants.  However, the amendment of appropriate sections of this registration shall not require revocation of this registration.



(d)	For any cause which establishes in the judgment of IDEM the fact that continuance of this registration is not consistent with purposes of this article.



B.4	Prior Permits Superseded [326 IAC 2-1.1-9.5]

(a)	All terms and conditions of permits established prior to Registration No. R097-47633-00951 and issued pursuant to permitting programs approved into the state implementation plan have been either:



(1)	incorporated as originally stated,



(2)	revised, or



(3)	deleted.



(b)	All previous registrations and permits are superseded by this registration.



B.5	Annual Notification [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(3)] [326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(3)]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(3) and 326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(3):



(a)	An annual notification shall be submitted by an authorized individual to the Office of Air Quality stating whether or not the source is in operation and in compliance with the terms and conditions contained in this registration. 



(b)	The annual notice shall be submitted in the format attached no later than March 1 of each year to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, IN 462042251



(c)	The notification shall be considered timely if the date postmarked on the envelope or certified mail receipt, or affixed by the shipper on the private shipping receipt, is on or before the date it is due.  If the document is submitted by any other means, it shall be considered timely if received by IDEM, OAQ on or before the date it is due.



B.6	Source Modification Requirement [326 IAC 2-5.5-6(a)]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.5-6(a), an application or notification shall be submitted in accordance with 326 IAC 2 to the Office of Air Quality (OAQ) if the source proposes to construct new emission units, modify existing emission units, or otherwise modify the source.  



B.7	Registrations [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(i)]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-5.1-2(i), this registration does not limit the source’s potential to emit.  



B.8	Preventive Maintenance Plan [326 IAC 163]

(a)	If required by specific condition(s) in Section D of this registration, the Registrant shall prepare and maintain Preventive Maintenance Plans (PMPs) no later than ninety (90) days after issuance of this registration or ninety (90) days after initial start-up, whichever is later, including the following information on each facility:



(1)	Identification of the individual(s) responsible for inspecting, maintaining, and repairing emission control devices;



(2)	A description of the items or conditions that will be inspected and the inspection schedule for said items or conditions; and



(3)	Identification and quantification of the replacement parts that will be maintained in inventory for quick replacement.



If, due to circumstances beyond the Registrant’s control, the PMPs cannot be prepared and maintained within the above time frame, the Registrant may extend the date an additional ninety (90) days provided the Registrant notifies:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



The Registrant shall implement the PMPs.



(b)	A copy of the PMPs shall be submitted to IDEM, OAQ upon request and within a reasonable time, and shall be subject to review and approval by IDEM, OAQ.  IDEM, OAQ may require the Registrant to revise its PMPs whenever lack of proper maintenance causes or is the primary contributor to an exceedance of any limitation on emissions.



(c) 	To the extent the Registrant is required by 40 CFR Part 60 or 40 CFR Part 63 to have an Operation Maintenance, and Monitoring (OMM) Plan for a unit, such OMM Plan is deemed to satisfy the PMP requirements of 326 IAC 163 for that unit.




SECTION C	SOURCE OPERATION CONDITIONS



		

Entire Source









Emission Limitations and Standards  [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(g)] [326 IAC 2-5.5-4(b)]



C.1	Opacity  [326 IAC 51]  

[bookmark: _Hlk67993445]Pursuant to 326 IAC 512 (Opacity Limitations), except as provided in 326 IAC 511 (Applicability) and 326 IAC 513 (Temporary Alternative Opacity Limitations), opacity shall meet the following, unless otherwise stated in this registration:



(a)	Opacity shall not exceed an average of thirty percent (30%) in any one (1) six (6) minute averaging period as determined in 326 IAC 5-1-4:



(b)	Opacity shall not exceed sixty percent (60%) for more than a cumulative total of fifteen (15) minutes (sixty (60) readings as measured according to 40 CFR 60, Appendix A, Method 9 or fifteen (15) one (1) minute nonoverlapping integrated averages for a continuous opacity monitor) in a six (6) hour period.



C.2	Fugitive Dust Emissions  [326 IAC 64]

The Registrant shall not allow fugitive dust to escape beyond the property line or boundaries of the property, right-of-way, or easement on which the source is located, in a manner that would violate 326 IAC 64 (Fugitive Dust Emissions).   

[bookmark: _Hlk67993507]

Corrective Actions and Response Steps



C.3	Response to Excursions or Exceedances [326 IAC 2-5.1-3(e)(2)]

Upon detecting an excursion where a response step is required by the D Section or an exceedance of a limitation in this registration:



(a)	The Registrant shall take reasonable response steps to restore operation of the emissions unit (including any control device and associated capture system) to its normal or usual manner of operation as expeditiously as practicable in accordance with good air pollution control practices for minimizing excess emissions.



(b) 	The response shall include minimizing the period of any startup, shutdown or malfunction. The response may include, but is not limited to, the following:



(1)	initial inspection and evaluation;



(2)	recording that operations returned or are returning to normal without operator action (such as through response by a computerized distribution control system); or



(3)	any necessary follow-up actions to return operation to normal or usual manner of operation. 



(c)	A determination of whether the Registrant has used acceptable procedures in response to an excursion or exceedance will be based on information available, which may include, but is not limited to, the following:



(1)	monitoring results;



(2)	review of operation and maintenance procedures and records; and/or



(3)	inspection of the control device, associated capture system, and the process.



(d)	Failure to take reasonable response steps shall be considered a deviation from the registration.



(e)	The Registrant shall record the reasonable response steps taken.



Record Keeping and Reporting Requirements [326 IAC 25.1-3(e)(2)]



C.4	General Record Keeping Requirements [326 IAC 25.1-3(e)(2)] 

(a)	Records of all required monitoring data, reports and support information required by this registration shall be retained for a period of at least five (5) years from the date of monitoring sample, measurement, report, or application.  These records shall be physically present or electronically accessible at the source location for a minimum of three (3) years.  The records may be stored elsewhere for the remaining two (2) years as long as they are available upon request.  If the Commissioner makes a request for records to the Registrant, the Registrant shall furnish the records to the Commissioner within a reasonable time.



(b)	Unless otherwise specified in this registration, for all record keeping requirements not already legally required, the Registrant shall be allowed up to ninety (90) days from the date of registration issuance or the date of initial start-up, whichever is later, to begin such record keeping.



[bookmark: _Hlk166161973]
SECTION D.1	EMISSION UNIT OPERATION CONDITIONS



		

Emission Unit Description: 



(a)	One (1) surface coating booth, identified as PB1, approved in 2024 for construction, using a single high volume low pressure (HVLP) spray applicator to coat structural steel, with a maximum capacity of 1.72 gallons of paint per hour and 2.16 gallons of solvents per day, using no control, and exhausting indoors.



(The information describing the process contained in this emissions unit description box is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.)







Emission Limitations and Standards [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(1)] [326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(1)]



D.1.1	Particulate Emission Limitations (PM) [326 IAC 6.5-1-2]

(a)	Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-2(h), particulate emissions from the surface coating booth (PB1) shall be controlled by a dry filter, waterwash, or an equivalent control device. The control device shall be operated in accordance with manufacturer's specifications.



(b)	If overspray is visibly detected at the exhaust or accumulates on the ground, the Registrant shall inspect the control device and do either of the following no later than four (4) hours after such observation: 



(1)	Repair control devices so that no overspray is visibly detectable at the exhaust or accumulates on the ground. 



(2)	Operate equipment so that no overspray is visibly detectable at the exhaust or accumulates on the ground.



(c)	If overspray is visibly detected, the Registrant shall maintain a record of the action taken as a result of the inspection, any repairs of the control device or change in operations, so that overspray is not visibly detected at the exhaust or accumulates on the ground. These records must be maintained for five (5) years. 



D.1.2	Volatile Organic Compound (VOC) Limitations [326 IAC 8-2-9] 

Pursuant to 326 IAC 8-2-9 (Miscellaneous Metal and Plastic Parts Coating Operations), for the surface coating booth (PB1), the Registrant shall not allow the discharge into the atmosphere VOC in excess of three and five-tenths (3.5) pounds of VOC per gallon of coating, excluding water, as delivered to the applicator.  



[bookmark: _Toc387910972]D.1.3	Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) Work Practices  [326 IAC 8-2-9]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 8-2-9(f) (Miscellaneous Metal and Plastic Parts Coating Operations), work practices shall be used to minimize VOC emissions from mixing operations, storage tanks, and other containers, and handling operations for coatings, thinners, cleaning materials, and waste materials.  Work practices shall include, but not be limited to, the following:



(a)	Store all VOC containing coatings, thinners, coating related waste, and cleaning materials in closed containers.



(b)	Ensure that mixing and storage containers used for VOC containing coatings, thinners, coating related waste, and cleaning materials are kept closed at all times except when depositing or removing these materials.



(c)	Minimize spills of VOC containing coatings, thinners, coating related waste, and cleaning materials.



(d)	Convey VOC containing coatings, thinners, coating related waste, and cleaning materials from one (1) location to another in closed containers or pipes.



(e)	Minimize VOC emissions from the cleaning of application, storage, mixing, and conveying equipment by ensuring that equipment cleaning is performed without atomizing the cleaning solvent and all spent solvent is captured in closed containers.



[bookmark: _Toc153792250]D.1.4	Preventive Maintenance Plan  [326 IAC 1-6-3] 

A Preventive Maintenance Plan is required for these facilities and any control devices.  Section B - Preventive Maintenance Plan contains the Permittee's obligation with regard to the preventive maintenance plan required by this condition.  



Compliance Determination Requirements



D.1.5	Volatile Organic Compounds [326 IAC 8-1-2] [326 IAC 8-1-4]

Compliance with the VOC content and usage limitations contained in Condition D.1.2 shall be determined pursuant to 326 IAC 8-1-4(a)(3) and 326 IAC 8-1-2(a) by preparing or obtaining from the manufacturer the copies of the “as supplied” and “as applied” VOC data sheets.  IDEM, OAQ, reserves the authority to determine compliance using Method 24 in conjunction with the analytical procedures specified in 326 IAC 8-1-4.



Record Keeping and Reporting Requirements [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(g)] [326 IAC 2-5.5-4(b)]



D.1.6	Record Keeping Requirements 

(a)	To document the compliance status with Condition D.1.1(c), the Registrant shall maintain a record of any actions taken if overspray is visibly detected.



(b)	To document the compliance status with Condition D.1.2, the Registrant shall maintain records in accordance with (1) through (2) below.  Records maintained for (1) through (2) shall be taken as stated below and shall be complete and sufficient to establish compliance with the VOC emission limits established in Condition D.1.2.  



(1)	The VOC content of each coating material and solvent used less water.



(2)	The amount of each coating material and solvent used on monthly basis.



(A)	Records shall include purchase orders, invoices, and safety data sheets (SDS) necessary to verify the type and amount used.



(B)	Solvent usage records shall differentiate between those added to coatings and those used as cleanup solvents.



(c)	Section C - General Record Keeping Requirements contains the Registrant’s obligation with regard to the records required by this condition.






SECTION D.2	EMISSION UNIT OPERATION CONDITIONS



		

Emission Unit Description: 



(b)	Seventeen (17) MIG welding stations, identified as Weld 1 to Weld 17, approved in 2024 for construction, each with a maximum electrode consumption of 1.85 pounds per hour, using no control, and exhausting indoors.



Under NESHAP 40 CFR 63, Subpart XXXXXX, each station is considered an affected facility.



(c)	Four (4) plasma cutting stations, identified as Plasma 1 to Plasma 4, approved in 2024 for construction, each station with a maximum metal cutting rate of 60 inches per minute and maximum metal thickness of 0.78 inches, using a dust collector as control, and exhausting indoors.



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



(1)	Ten (10) natural gas-fired radiant comfort heaters, identified as H-1 through H-10.

(2)	Five (5) natural gas-fired standard comfort heaters, identified as H-11 through H-15.



(The information describing the process contained in this emissions unit description box is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.)







Emission Limitations and Standards [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(1)] [326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(1)]



D.2.1	Particulate Emission Limitations (PM) [326 IAC 6.5-1-2]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-2(a), particulate matter (PM) emissions from each of the following emission unit(s) shall not exceed three-hundredths (0.03) grain per dry standard cubic foot (dscf).



		Emission unit



		Seventeen (17) MIG welding stations (Weld 1 through Weld 17)



		Four (4) plasma cutting stations (Plasma 1 through Plasma 4)



		Machining and Grinding (Machining-1)



		Fifteen (15) natural gas-fired heaters (H-1 through H-15)







D.2.1	Preventive Maintenance Plan  [326 IAC 1-6-3] 

A Preventive Maintenance Plan is required for these facilities and any control devices.  Section B - Preventive Maintenance Plan contains the Permittee's obligation with regard to the preventive maintenance plan required by this condition.  








SECTION E.1	NESHAP



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



Under NESHAP 40 CFR 63, Subpart XXXXXX, this operation is considered an affected facility.



(The information describing the process contained in this facility description box is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.)





[bookmark: _Hlk67993735]

E.1.1	General Provisions Relating to National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants under 40 CFR Part 63 [326 IAC 20-1] [40 CFR Part 63, Subpart A]

(a)	Pursuant to 40 CFR 63.1 the Registrant shall comply with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart A – General Provisions, which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 20-1, for the emission unit(s) listed above, except as otherwise specified in 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart XXXXXX.



(b)	Pursuant to 40 CFR 63.10, the Registrant shall submit all required notifications and reports to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 61-53 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana  46204-2251



and



United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5

Air and Radiation Division, Air Enforcement Branch - Indiana (AE-17J)

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590



E.1.2	National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Nine Metal Fabrication and Finishing Source Categories NESHAP [40 CFR Part 63, Subpart XXXXXX] 

The Registrant shall comply with the following provisions of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart XXXXXX (included as Attachment A to the registration) for the emission unit(s) listed above:



(1)	40 CFR 63.1516(b)

(2)	40 CFR 63.11516(c)

(3)	40 CFR 63.11516(f)

(4)	40 CFR 63.11517(b)

(5)	40 CFR 63.11519


INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

OFFICE OF AIR QUALITY

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT BRANCH



REGISTRATION

ANNUAL NOTIFICATION



This form should be used to comply with the notification requirements under 326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(3) and 326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(3).



		Company Name:	 Lenex Steel Company 



		Source Address:	2902 Tobey Drive



		City:	Indianapolis, Indiana, 46219



		Phone Number:	317-818-1622



		Registration No.:	R097-47633-00951







		I hereby certify that Lenex Steel Company is:

		  still in operation.



		

		  no longer in operation.



		I hereby certify that Lenex Steel Company is:

		  in compliance with the requirements
of Registration No. R097-47633-00951.



		

		  not in compliance with the requirements
of Registration No. R097-47633-00951.







		[bookmark: _Hlk166057972]Authorized Individual (typed):	



		Title: 



		Signature:

		Date:



		Email Address:

		Phone:







If there are any conditions or requirements for which the source is not in compliance, provide a narrative description of how the source did or will achieve compliance and the date compliance was, or will be achieved.



		Noncompliance:



		



		



		







		An Equal Opportunity Employer
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From: Jennifer Richards

To: Hanafy, Mohamed S; Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com
Cc: CALILUNG, IRYN
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel Company
Date: Monday, May 13, 2024 1:46:17 PM
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
Could we have one more week for review? We will need to have discussions with our
client and would like a bit more time.

Thank you,
Jennifer M. Richards
A Senior Compliance Consultant
August Mack Environmental, Inc.
AugustMack ™"
ANV I RONMANTAL Email: jrichards@augustmack.com

Expertise. Innovation, ~ Mobile: 317.363.7138
Commitment. Nationwide. 1302 North Meridian Street, Suite 300
Indianapolis, IN 46202
Cf,’ @ augustmack.com

From: Hanafy, Mohamed S <MHanafy@idem.IN.gov>

Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 4:46 PM

To: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; Jennifer Richards <JRichards@augustmack.com>
Cc: CALILUNG, IRYN <ICALILUN@idem.IN.gov>

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
Cc: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; CALILUNG, IRYN
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel Company
Date: Monday, May 13, 2024 2:19:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png
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image007.png

Ms. Richards,

You are being allotted one more week to provide comments, please provide your comments on or before
May 23, 2024, please let me know if you have any questions.

Regards,
IDEM Mohamed S. Hanafy

317-234-4907 MHanafy@idem.IN.gov

From: Jennifer Richards <JRichards@augustmack.com>

Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 1:46 PM

To: Hanafy, Mohamed S <MHanafy@idem.IN.gov>; Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com

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

Expertise. Innovation. Mobile: 317.363.7138
Commitment. Nationwide. 1302 North Meridian Street, Suite 300
Indianapolis, IN 46202
@ @ Q augustmack.com
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From: Hanafy, Mohamed S <MHanafy@idem.IN.gov>

Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 4:46 PM

To: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; Jennifer Richards <JRichards@augustmack.com>
Cc: CALILUNG, IRYN <|CALILUN@idem.IN.gov>

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
Cc: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; CALILUNG, IRYN; Alic Bent; Ashley Hobbs
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel Company
Date: Thursday, May 23, 2024 10:57:04 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
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
Good morning. We have one response to the Indianapolis Lenex Steel facility’s draft air
permit:

® In Section D.1.1. for the Painting Operation - the section talks about the process being
controlled and that if overspray is observed the correction actions need to be taken
and documented, etc. However, the description and calculations, states the operation
is uncontrolled and there is no other control devices. We request the following for
IDEM to consider:

o Take a PM limit of <10 tpy on the coating process to avoid the requirement to

add particulate control.
Please let us know if you have any questions.

Thanks,
Jennifer M. Richards
A Senior Compliance Consultant

August Mack Environmental, Inc.
AugustMack "
ENVIRONMENTAL Email; jrichards@augustmack.com
Expertise. Innovation. Mobile: 317.363.7138

Commitment. Nationwide. 1302 North Meridian Street, Suite 300
) Indianapolis, IN 46202
@ @ augustmack.com

From: Hanafy, Mohamed S <MHanafy@idem.IN.gov>

Sent: Monday, May 13, 2024 2:19 PM

To: Jennifer Richards <JRichards@augustmack.com>

Cc: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; CALILUNG, IRYN <ICALILUN@idem.IN.gov>

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

Cc: CALILUNG, IRYN <[CALILUN@idem.IN.gov>

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
@ @ 'O augustmack.com

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
Date: Friday, June 7, 2024 9:03:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png
image007.png
47633calcs AR2.xlsx
47633per AR2.docx
47633tsd AR2.docx
Importance: High

Dears Clint Hutchcraft and Jennifer Richards:

Attached, please find the Registration Permit and supporting documents for a second review; this second
review is based on the last update from Lenex Steel Company comments; if there are any comments,
please let me know by the end of June 11, 2024.

Thank you,

IDEM Mohamed S. Hanafy

317-234-4907¢ MHanafy@idem.IN.gov

From: Jennifer Richards <JRichards@augustmack.com>

Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2024 10:57 AM

To: Hanafy, Mohamed S <MHanafy@idem.IN.gov>

Cc: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; CALILUNG, IRYN <ICALILUN@idem.IN.gov>; Alic Bent
<ABent@augustmack.com>; Ashley Hobbs <ahobbs@augustmack.com>

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

																						0.07

																						0.00

		Emission Units		 Limited Potential to Emit (tons/year)

				PM		PM10		PM2.5		SO2		NOx		VOC		CO		Highest Single HAP				Total HAP

		Spray Coating Operation		1.24		1.24		1.24		-		-		23.37		-		Toluene		0.93		0.93

		Welding and Flame Cutting		0.95		0.95		0.95		-		-		-		-		Manganese		0.00		0.07

		Machining and Grinding		0.09		0.04		0.04		-		-		-		-		Manganese		0.00		3.56E-03

		Natural Gas Combustion		0.04		0.17		0.17		0.01		2.25		0.12		1.89		Hexane		0.00		0.04

		Wet Cutting		-		-		-		-		-		0.32		-		-				0.00

		Total without Fugitives:		2.32		2.40		2.40		0.01		2.25		23.82		1.89		Toluene		0.93		1.05

		Paved Roads		0.65		0.13		0.03		-		-		0.00		-		-				-

		Total with Fugitives:		2.97		2.53		2.43		0.01		2.25		23.82		1.89		Toluene		0.93		1.05

		Shaded cells indicate limits.
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



		Material		Density (lbs/gal)		Weight % Volatile (water, VOC, and exempt compounds*)		Weight % water and   exempt compounds*		Weight %     VOC		Volume % water and              exempt compounds*		Volume %    Solids		Maximum Material Usage (gal/unit)		Maximum Capacity (units/hour)		Maximum Material   Usage (gal/day)		Pounds VOC per gallon of coating less water and exempt compounds		Pounds VOC per gallon of coating		PTE of VOC (lbs/hour)		PTE of VOC (lbs/day)		PTE of   VOC (tons/year) 		Uncontrolled             PTE of    PM/PM10/PM2.5 (tons/year)		Limited(3)             PTE of    PM/PM10/PM2.5 (tons/year)		Pounds VOC per gallon of coating solids		Transfer Efficiency

		Fast Dry 4190 (1)		12.35		45.00%		22.79%		22.21%		2.60%		77.21%		1.000		1.725		41.400		2.82		2.74		4.73		113.56		20.72		10.26		1.24		3.55		80%

		MEK Solvent (2)		6.72		100.00%		0.00%		100.00%		0.00%		0.00%		1.000		0.090		2.160		6.72		6.72		0.60		14.52		2.65		0.00		0.00		0.00		0%

																		Totals		43.56						5.34		128.07		23.37		10.26

		(2) MEK Solvent is a solvent being used for paint equipment cleaning and is not a surface coating paint.

																		Limited coating material usage = 		5.00		gal/day



		Methodology

		(1) Exempt compounds include all compounds specifically exempted from the definition of volatile organic compounds (VOC) under 40 CFR 51.100(s).

		(3) The facility is not subject to 326 IAC 6.5 and 326 IAC 6-3-2  because  it is limited to less than 5 gallons of coating per day and less than 10 tons of PM/year. 

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

		Controlled PTE of PM/PM10/PM2.5 (tons/year) = [Density (lbs/gal)] * [Maximum Material Usage (gal/day)]/ [24 hour)] * [1 - Weight % Volatile)] * [1 - Transfer Efficiency)] * [8760 hour/year] * [1 ton/2000 lbs]

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



D.1.1	Particulate Emission Limitations (PM) [326 IAC 6.5-1-2] and [326 IAC 6-3-2]

In order to render the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5-1-2 (Particulate Matter Limitations Except Lake County) and 326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes) not applicable, the Registrant shall comply with the following:



The maximum usage of coatings applied by paint booth PB1 shall be limited to less than five (5) gallons per day.



Compliance with these limits, combined with the potential to emit PM, PM10, and PM2.5 from all other emission units at this source, shall limit the source-wide total potential to emit of PM, PM10, and PM2.5 to less than 10 tons per twelve (12) consecutive month period, each, and shall render the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5-1-2 (Particulate Matter Limitations Except Lake County) and 326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes) not applicable to the source.



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

A Preventive Maintenance Plan is required for these facilities and any control devices.  Section B - Preventive Maintenance Plan contains the Registrant's obligation with regard to the preventive maintenance plan required by this condition.  



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

(a)	To document the compliance status with Condition D.1.1, the Registrant shall maintain records of the gallons of coatings per day used by paint booth PB1.



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



[bookmark: _Toc15564046][bookmark: _Toc16243774][bookmark: _Toc46481515][bookmark: _Toc159923193]D.1.7    Reporting Requirements

A quarterly summary of the information to document the compliance status with Condition D.1.1 shall be submitted not later than thirty (30) days after the end of the quarter being reported. Section C - General Reporting contains the Registrant’s obligation with regard to the reporting required by this condition.




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

Compliance and Enforcement Branch



Monthly Report

(To be Submitted Quarterly)



Source Name: 	Lenex Steel Company

Source Address:	2902 Tobey Drive, Indianapolis, Indiana 46219

MSOP Permit No.:	0974763300951

Facility:	Surface coating booth PB1

Parameter:	Gallons of coatings per day

Limit:	Less than five (5) gallons per day.





MONTH:_____________________	YEAR:_____________________



		Day

		Usage this day

(gallons/day)

		Day

		Usage this day

(gallons/day)



		1

		

		17

		



		2

		

		18

		



		3

		

		19

		



		4

		

		20

		



		5

		

		21

		



		6

		

		22

		



		7

		

		23

		



		8

		

		24

		



		9

		

		25

		



		10

		

		26

		



		11

		

		27

		



		12

		

		28

		



		13

		

		29

		



		14

		

		30

		



		15

		

		31

		



		16

		

		TOTAL

		







Form Completed by:	



Title / Position:	



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



		Company Name:	Lenex Steel Company



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



		[image: StateWorksLogo_Vert_Blue]

		[image: Made from recycled]Recycled Paper
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Lenex Steel Company	Page 2 of 21

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



(e)	One (1) Band Saw, using wet cutting fluid, approved in 2024 for construction, using no control, and exhausting indoors.



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



The emission units are subject to the following portions of Subpart XXXXXX:



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



[bookmark: _Hlk168047611]326 IAC 6.5 (Particulate Matter Limitations Except Lake County)

The source, located in Marion County, is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5, because its actual PM emissions are limited to less than 10 tons per year by limiting the coating usage of paint booth PB1 to less than 5 gallons per day. 



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



[bookmark: _Hlk168047648]326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-1(b)(15) the surface coating booth PB1 is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3, since the paint usage in surface coating booth PB1 is going to be limited to less than five (5) gallons per day. Therefore, the surface coating booth PB1 is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3-2.



326 IAC 6.5 (Particulate Matter Limitations Except Lake County)

The PB1 is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5, because the entire source’s actual PM emissions are limited to less than 10 tons per year. 



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

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-1(b)(9), welding operations that consume less than 625 pounds of rod or wire per day are exempt from 326 IAC 6-3-2. Therefore, each of the seventeen (17) welding stations is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3-2.



Plasma Cutting Operation (Plasma 1 through Plasma 4)



326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-1(b)(6), torch cutting that cuts less than 3,400 inches per hour of stock one (1) inch thickness or less is exempt from the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3-2. Therefore, each of the four (4) plasma cutters is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3-2.



The torch cutting is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5, because the entire source’s actual PM emissions are limited to less than 10 tons per year. 



Machining and Grinding (Machining-1)



326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-1(b)(14), machining and grinding are with potential emissions less than 0.551 pound per hour are exempt from the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3-2. Therefore, each of the three (3) units (grinder, metal saw cutting and grill press) is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3-2.



The machining and grinding are not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5, because the entire source’s actual PM emissions are limited to less than 10 tons per year. 



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

Cc: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; CALILUNG, IRYN <|CALILUN@idem.IN.gov>

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
Mohamed S. Hanafy

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


https://protect2.fireeye.com/v1/url?k=31323334-50bba2bf-31367a34-4544474f5631-f6b39d37857f0ce0&q=1&e=258686f2-2a3f-49b7-95e7-c5cbbd00cb1f&u=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FAugustMackEnvironmental%2F
https://protect2.fireeye.com/v1/url?k=31323334-50bba2bf-31367a34-4544474f5631-137e1fbd9de4e1bf&q=1&e=258686f2-2a3f-49b7-95e7-c5cbbd00cb1f&u=http%3A%2F%2Flinkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Faugust-mack-environmental-inc-
https://protect2.fireeye.com/v1/url?k=31323334-50bba2bf-31367a34-4544474f5631-1cbef32bbad41a95&q=1&e=258686f2-2a3f-49b7-95e7-c5cbbd00cb1f&u=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FAugustMack
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client and would like a bit more time.

Thank you,
Jennifer M. Richards
A Senior Compliance Consultant
/ August Mack Environmental, Inc.
AugustMack ™"
Email: jrichards@augustmack.com

Expertise. Innovation. Mobile: 317.363.7138
Commitment. Nationwide. 1302 North Meridian Street, Suite 300
Indianapolis, IN 46202
Cf.' @ ¥ augustmack.com

From: Hanafy, Mohamed S <MHanafy@idem.IN.gov>

Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 4:46 PM

To: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; Jennifer Richards <JRichards@augustmack.com>
Cc: CALILUNG, IRYN <[CALILUN @idem.IN.gov>

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
j Environmental Manager
OAQ Permits Branch

Indiana Department of Environmental Management

317-234-4907+ MHanafy@idem.IN.gov
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From: Jennifer Richards
To: Hanafy, Mohamed S
Cc: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; CALILUNG, IRYN; tyler.prater@lenexsteel.com; Ashley Hobbs; Alic Bent
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel Company
Date: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 11:28:10 AM
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**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Mr. Hanafy,
Lenex Steel in Indianapolis will like to comply with 326 IAC 6-3 and 326 IAC 6.5 instead of
the limits in the draft permit

work practices, which are equivalent to a control device, shall be used at all times when
the one (1) spray painting operation is in operation:
® Conduct all spray coating operations within an enclosed building;
® Close main doors, overhead doors and powered vents located within 100 feet of
the spray equipment, and keep them closed during spray operations;
® Collect dry-fall paint on floor surfaces; and
® Collect and dispose dry-fall paint from floor surfaces to prevent re-entrainment to

exhaust air.
If you have any questions, please let me know.
Thanks,

Jennifer M. Richards
A Senior Compliance Consultant

August Mack Environmental, Inc.
AugustMack o=
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

Sent: Friday, June 7, 2024 9:04 AM

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

Cc: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; CALILUNG, IRYN <|CALILUN@idem.IN.gov>; Alic Bent
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
AugustMack "o
ANVIRONMENTAL Email: jrichards@augustmack.com
Expertise. Innovation. Mobile: 317.363.7138

Commitment. Nationwide. 1302 North Meridian Street, Suite 300
Indianapolis, IN 46202
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@ @ 'Q' augustmack.com

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
Date: Friday, June 28, 2024 3:58:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

image003.png

image004.png

image005.png

image007.png

47633calcs AR3.xlsx

47633tsd AR3.docx

47633per AR3.docx

Dears Clint Hutchcraft and Jennifer Richards:

Attached, please find the Registration Permit and supporting documents for a third review; this third
review is based on the last update from Lenex Steel Company comments; if there are any comments,
please let me know by the end of July 2, 2024.

Thank you,

IDEM Mohamed S. Hanafy

317-234-4907¢ MHanafy@idem.IN.gov

From: Jennifer Richards <JRichards@augustmack.com>

Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 11:28 AM

To: Hanafy, Mohamed S <MHanafy@idem.IN.gov>

Cc: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; CALILUNG, IRYN <ICALILUN@idem.IN.gov>;
tyler.prater@lenexsteel.com; Ashley Hobbs <ahobbs@augustmack.com>; Alic Bent
<ABent@augustmack.com>

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
Collect and dispose dry-fall paint from floor surfaces to prevent re-entrainment to
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

		Spray Coating Booth (PB1)		10.26		10.26		10.26		-		-		23.37		-		Toluene		0.93		0.93

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

																Surface Coating Booth 



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

		PB1

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



(a)	One (1) surface coating booth, identified as PB1, approved in 2024 for construction, using a single high volume low pressure (HVLP) spray applicator to coat structural steel, with a maximum capacity of 1.72 gallons of paint per hour and 2.16 gallons of solvents per day, using work practices and operator training as control, and exhausting indoors.



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

This source (located in Marion County) is located in one of the counties listed in 326 IAC 6.5, but is not one of the sources specifically listed in 326 IAC 6.5-2 through 326 IAC 6.5-10. 



The source-wide PTE of PM is 10 tons per year or more.  Therefore, this source is subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5-1-2 because the source-wide actual emissions of PM can be 10 tons per year or more. 



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

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-1(c)(3), the surface coating booth, identified as PB1, is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3, since it is subject to a particulate matter limitation that is as stringent as or more stringent than the particulate limitation established under 326 IAC 6.5.



326 IAC 6.5 (Particulate Matter Limitations Except Lake County)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-1(a), this source is subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5-1-2, because this source is located in Vigo County, is not specifically listed in 326 IAC 6.5-2 through 326 IAC 6.5-10, and the source has the potential to emit particulate matter emissions of 10 tons per year or more and is not limited to less than 10 tons per year. 



In addition, the source has the capacity to use more than five (5) gallons of coating per day for each paint booth and not taking a limit to less than five (5) gallons of coating per day. 



Therefore, this source is subject to 326 IAC6.5-1-2.



[bookmark: _Hlk169163537](a)	Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-2(h), the surface coating operation shall be controlled by a dry particulate filter, waterwash, or an equivalent control device, and the Registrant shall operate the control device in accordance with manufacturer’s specifications.



(b)	Particulate from the surface coating booth (PB1) are currently not controlled by a dry particulate filter or waterwash system. 



	The source is using an equivalent control device for this operation to control any particulate. 



The Registrant shall use the following work practices and operator training as equivalent control device for surface coating booth (PB1) as follows:



Work practices:



[bookmark: _Hlk169094920](1)	Conduct all spray coating operations within an enclosed building. 



(2)	Close main doors, overhead doors and powered vents located within 100 feet of the spray equipment, and keep them closed during spray operations. 



(3)	Collect coating overspray on drip boards or disposable media such as cardboard or plastic sheets, and/or collect dry-fall paint on floor surfaces. 



(4)	Contain and dispose dry-fall paint from drip boards, disposable media and floor surfaces to prevent re-entrainment to exhaust air.



Operator training:



(1)	The Registrant shall train all new and existing personnel, including contract personnel, who are involved in undercoating applications that could result in excess emissions if performed improperly according to the following schedule:



(i)	All personnel hired shall be trained within thirty (30) days of hiring.

(ii)	To ensure training goals listed in subsection (b) are maintained, all personnel shall be given refresher training annually.



(2)	The lesson plans shall cover, for the initial and refresher training, at a minimum, all of the following topics:



(i)	Appropriate application techniques.

(ii)	Appropriate equipment cleaning procedures.

(iii)	Appropriate equipment setup and adjustment to minimize material usage and overspray.



(3)	The Registrant shall maintain the following training records on site and make them available for inspection and review:



(i)	A copy of the current training program.

(ii)	A list of the following:



(A)	All current personnel, by name, that are required to be trained.

(B)	The date the person was trained or date of most recent refresher training, whichever is later.



(4)	Records of prior training programs and former personnel are not required to be maintained.



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



Welding Operations (Weld 1 through Weld 17)



326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes)

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-1(c)(3), the welding operations, identified as Weld 1 through Weld 17, are not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6-3, since it is subject to a particulate matter limitation that is as stringent as or more stringent than the particulate limitation established under 326 IAC 6.5.



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

The wet metal cutting operation is not subject to the requirements of 326 IAC 6.5, because the process does not emit particulate matter.



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



[bookmark: _Hlk166072673](a)	One (1) surface coating booth, identified as PB1, approved in 2024 for construction, using a single high volume low pressure (HVLP) spray applicator to coat structural steel, with a maximum capacity of 1.72 gallons of paint per hour and 2.16 gallons of solvents per day, using work practices and operator training as control, and exhausting indoors.



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



[bookmark: _Hlk166073424][bookmark: _Hlk169174804](e)	One (1) Band Saw, using wet cutting fluid at a maximum usage rate of 1.37 pounds per hour, approved in 2024 for construction, using no control, and exhausting indoors.



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



[bookmark: _Hlk169166734](a)	One (1) surface coating booth, identified as PB1, approved in 2024 for construction, using a single high volume low pressure (HVLP) spray applicator to coat structural steel, with a maximum capacity of 1.72 gallons of paint per hour and 2.16 gallons of solvents per day, using work practices and operator training as control, and exhausting indoors.



(The information describing the process contained in this emissions unit description box is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.)







Emission Limitations and Standards [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(f)(1)] [326 IAC 2-5.5-4(a)(1)]



D.1.1	Particulate Emission Limitations (PM) [326 IAC 6.5-1-2]

	Pursuant to 326 IAC 6.5-1-2(h), the surface coating booth (PB1) shall be controlled by a dry particulate filter, waterwash, or an equivalent control device, and the Registrant shall operate the control device in accordance with manufacturer’s specifications.



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



D.1.5	Particulate Matter (PM) [326 IAC 6.5-1-2]

[bookmark: _Hlk169181220]	In order to comply with Condition D.1.1, the Registrant shall implement the work practices and operator training as equivalent control device for surface coating booth (PB1) as follows:



(a)	Work practices:



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



(b)	Operator training:



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



D.1.6	Volatile Organic Compounds [326 IAC 8-1-2] [326 IAC 8-1-4]

Compliance with the VOC content and usage limitations contained in Condition D.1.2 shall be determined pursuant to 326 IAC 8-1-4(a)(3) and 326 IAC 8-1-2(a) by preparing or obtaining from the manufacturer the copies of the “as supplied” and “as applied” VOC data sheets.  IDEM, OAQ, reserves the authority to determine compliance using Method 24 in conjunction with the analytical procedures specified in 326 IAC 8-1-4.



Compliance Monitoring Requirements



D.1.7	Operator Training Requirements

(a)	The Permittee shall implement an operator-training program.



(1)	All operators that perform paint spray operations or booth maintenance shall be trained in the proper set-up and operation of the particulate control system. All existing operators shall be trained within 60 days of the date of permit reissuance. All new operators shall be trained upon hiring or transfer. 



(2)	Training shall include proper filter alignment, filter inspection and maintenance, and trouble shooting practices. The training program shall be written and retained on site. The training program shall include a description of the methods to be used at the completion of initial and refresher training to demonstrate and document successful completion. Copies of the training program, the list of trained operators and training records shall be maintained on site or available within 1 hour for inspection by IDEM. 



(3)	All operators shall be given refresher training annually. 



(b)	Additional inspections and preventive measures shall be performed as prescribed in the Preventive Maintenance Plan.



Record Keeping and Reporting Requirements [326 IAC 2-5.1-2(g)] [326 IAC 2-5.5-4(b)]



D.1.8	Record Keeping Requirements 

(a)	To document the compliance status with Condition D.1.2, the Registrant shall maintain records in accordance with (1) through (2) below.  Records maintained for (1) through (2) shall be taken as stated below and shall be complete and sufficient to establish compliance with the VOC emission limits established in Condition D.1.2.  



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



(b)	To document compliance with Condition D.1.5, the Permittee shall maintain a copy of the operator training program, training records, and those additional inspections prescribed by the Preventive Maintenance Plan.



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



		Machining and Grinding (Machining-1): one (1) grinder, one (1) metal cutting saw, one (1) drill press



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
ANV IRONMENTAL Email: jrichards@augustmack.com

Commitment. Nationwide. 1302 North Meridian Street, Suite 300
Indianapolis, IN 46202
@ @ O augustmack.com

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
@ @ \J augustmack.com

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
ANV IRONMEN TAL Email: jrichards@augustmack.com

Expertise. Innovation. Mobile: 317.363.7138
Commitment. Nationwide. 1302 North Meridian Street, Suite 300
Indianapolis, IN 46202
QO G augustmack.com

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
Cc: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; CALILUNG, IRYN; tyler.prater@lenexsteel.com
Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Registration No. 097-47633-00951 for Lenex Steel Company
Date: Monday, July 1, 2024 1:28:24 PM
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**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Mohamed,
On section D.1.7 could we revise this section to only be a requirement to have instructions

place at or near the painting operation?

Jennifer M. Richards
A Senior Compliance Consultant

August Mack Environmental, Inc.
AugustMack ="
BNVIRONMENTAL Email: jrichards@augustmack.com

Expertise. Innovation. Mobile: 317.363.7138
Commitment. Nationwide. 1302 North Meridian Street, Suite 300
Indianapolis, IN 46202
0 @ Q augustmack.com

From: Hanafy, Mohamed S <MHanafy@idem.IN.gov>

Sent: Friday, June 28, 2024 3:58 PM

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

Cc: Clint.Hutchcraft@lenexsteel.com; CALILUNG, IRYN <|CALILUN@idem.IN.gov>;
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
EE

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
ANV IRONWENTAT Email; jrichards@augustmack.com

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
AugustMack 7"
ERVIRONMENTAL Email: jrichards@augustmack.com

Expertise. Innovation. Mobile: 317.363.7138

Commitment. Nationwide. 1302 North Meridian Street, Suite 300
Indianapolis, IN 46202
@ @ Q‘ augustmack.com
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
listed below as soon as possible. If you have not responded on or before May 16, 2024, IDEM wiill
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
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